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Company Trofife
Nikhil adhesives Ltd., a listed company With the Bombay Stock Exchange is a multi product company
manufacturing various types of polymer emulsions and adhesives that are used for different applications.
The Company has three manufacturing units located at Dahanu ( Maharashtra ), Silvassa ( Dadra Nagar
Haveli ) and at Dahej ( Gujarat ). The Company had acquired the emulsion business of M/s. Mafatlal Dyes
& Chemicals Ltd. in the year 2003. The products are sold under the brand name Mahacol, Emditex, Emdilith,

. Emdicryl and others of which Nikhil Adhesives Ltd. is the sole owner.

Nikhil Adhesives Ltd. is an ISO 9001:2015 certified company and the products find use in the Paints,
Packaging, Furniture, Textiles and many other industries. The latest plant at Dahej has state of the art
laboratory With instruments like FTIR, Headspace GC, HPLC, Partile Size Analyzer, LVT, RVT Viscometer

etc. These are used for not only checking the quality of the incoming raw materials but also the end product
i .e. the emulsion. Thus before release of any finished goods, the products have to pass through-stringent
norms laid down for quality.

The Company has developed a good marketing network over the last 32 years in Domestic as well as Export
in all the segments and also maintained long term association With the most of their customers.

The Company has a persenee in almost all states and union territories in India and has expanded to other
countries such as Bangladesh, Sri Lanka, Nepal, Middle East, Taiwan, Kenya, Ethiopia, Lebanon amongst

others.

The Company has been expanding its production capacities along with well maintained quality standards,
however great care is taken to ensure the environment related issues are adhered, proper safety procedures
followed, effluent discharge systems, pollution control and all other related factors are strictly followed as

per local and even international norms. The company is constantly upgrading itself to the ecosystem
challenges and has initiated procedures to achieve ISO 14001 certification by this year end.

The Company’s philosophy to improve “the quality of life for all”, stems from the strong belief and desire to

make best use of the available resources, minimize pollution and provide value addition to the products so as

to give optimum benefits to its customers and society at large.
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Second Annual General Meeting ofNikhil Adhesives Limited will

be held on Friday the 28th September, 2018 at 11.00 am. at The Andheri Recreation Club, Dadabhai

Road, Opposite Bhavans College Road, Andheri (West) Mumbai 400058 to transact the following

business:

ORDINARYBUSINESS

1] To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year

ended3 1st March, 2018together with the reports ofthe Board ofDirectors andAuditors thereon.

2] To declare dividend forthe financial year ended 3 15‘March 2018.

3] To appoint a director in place of Mr. Tarak ]. Sanghvi [DIN 00519403], who retires by rotation at this

Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himselfforre-appointment.

4] Ratificationoprpointment ofAuditors:

To consider and, ifthoughtfit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and all other applicable provisions, ifany of

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies [Audit and Auditors] Rules, 2014, as amended from time to

time, the Company hereby ratifies the appointment of M/s. PHD & Associates, Chartered Accountants,

[Firm Registration Number: 111236W] as Auditors ofthe Company to hold office from the conclusion of

this Annual General Meeting [AGM] till the conclusion ofthe ThirtyThirdAGM ofthe Company to be held in

the year 20 19, to examine and audit the accounts ofthe Companyat such remuneration as maybe mutually

agreed between the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company and the Auditors."

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5] To consider and passthe followingResolution asan Special Resolution:

"RESOLVEDTHAT pursuant to the provisions ofRegulation 17 ofSEBl [Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements] Regulations, 2015 as amended and other applicable provisions ifany, consent ofmembers

ofthe Company be and is hereby accorded for continuation ofDirectorship oer. Madhusudan M. Vora who

were reappointed as Independent Directors of the Company for a period of5 years at the 28th Annual

General Meeting ofthe Company held on 27m September 20 14- till conclusion of33‘dAnnual General Meeting

by way ofordinary resolutions andwho have attained the age of75 years for the remaining period oftheir

existing term ofDirectorship as Independent Directors ofthe Company."

"RESOLVEDFURTHERTHAT any ofthe Directors ofthe Board ofthe Company be and is hereby authorized

either severally or jointly to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and expedient to

give effect to this Resolution."

6] Toconsider and pass the following Resolutionas an Special Resolution:

"RESOLVEDTHAT pursuant to the provisions ofRegulation 17 ofSEBl [Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements] Regulations, 2015 as amended and other applicable provisions ifany, consent ofmembers

of the Company be and is hereby accorded for continuation of Directorship of Mr. H.S. Kamath who were

reappointed as Independent Directors ofthe Company for a period of5 years at the 28th Annual General

Meeting ofthe Company held on 27" September 20 14- till conclusion of33'dAnnual General Meeting byway

ofordinary resolutions and who have attained the age of75 years for the remaining period oftheir existing

term ofDirectorship asIndependent Directors ofthe Company."

"RESOLVEDFURTHERTHAT any ofthe Directors ofthe Board ofthe Company be and is hereby authorized

either severally or jointly to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and expedient to

give effect to this Resolution."
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7] Toconsider andpass the following resolutionas an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THATpursuant to provisions ofSection 148 and all other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time and such

other permissions as may be necessary, the payment ofremuneration of‘ 50,000/- [Rupees Fifty

Thousand] with applicable Goods And Services Tax plus reimbursementofout ofpocket expenses

at actual to Messrs B. F. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants[Firm Registration No:10064] who

were appointed by the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company as "CostAuditors" to conduct the audit of

the cost records maintained by the Company in accordance with the Companies [Cost Records and

Audit] Rules, 2014, as amended, for the financial year ending 315tMarch, 2019, be and is hereby

ratified and approved.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Board ofthe Company be and is

hereby authorized either severally or jointly to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be

deemed proper and expedientto give effectto this Resolution."

NOTES:

1] AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND ANDVOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE ORMORE PROXIES TO

ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE

COMPANY. The instrument ofproxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the Registered Office

of the Company duly completed and signed not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the

meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by

appropriate resolutions/authority, as applicable.

A person can act as proxy on behalf ofMembers not aceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not

more than 10% of the total share capital ofthe Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed

by a Member holding more than 10% ofthe total share capital ofthe Company carrying voting rights,

thensuch proxy shall notact as aproxy for any other person or shareholder.

2] The statement, pursuant to Section 102 [1] ofthe Act in respect ofSpecial Business atItem No. 5,6 and

7 forms partofthis notice. Additional information, pursuant to Regulations 36[3] ofthe SEBI [Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial Standard - 2 issued by

Institute of Company Secretaries oflndia as notified by the Central Government on general meetings

in respect of Directors seeking appointment or reappointment at the Annual General Meeting is

furnishedas Annexure to the notice.

3] Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DPID

numbers for easy identification for attendance at the meeting.

a. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books ofthe company will remain

closed from 20th September, 2018 to 28th September, 2018 [both days inclusive].

4] The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books ofthe company will remain closed

from 20th September, 2018 to 28th September, 2018 [both days inclusive].The dividend on

equity shares as recommended by the Board ofDirectors, ifdeclared,will be payable to those

Equity Shareholders whose names stand on the Register ofMembers ofthe Company on 28th

September 2018 and in respect of shares held in the electronic form, the dividend will be

payable to the beneficial owners as perdetails furnished by the Depositories for this purpose.

5] Members are requested to notify immediately any change ofaddress

a] To their Depository Participants [DPs] in respectoftheir electronic share accounts, and

b] To the company's Registrars, M/S Sharex Dynamic [India] Pvt. Ltd. in respect oftheir

physical shares, ifany, quoting their folio numbers.

6] Members may avail the facility ofnomination by nominating a person to whom their shares in

the Company shall vest in the event of death. The prescribed form can be obtained from the

Company's Registrar and ShareTransfer Agent.

7] Shareholders desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to write to the

Company at an early date so as to enable the managementto keep the information ready.
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8] All unclaimed dividends upto and including the year 2008709 have been transferred to the credit of

Investor Education and Protection Fund [the Fund] established by the Central Government. In

respect ofunclaimed dividend for the Year 2009710 an amountofRs.1,13,569 whichwas required to

be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company in October, 2017, is

pending transfer The management is taking necessary steps to comply with transfer of the said

amount to the Fund. Shareholders are hereby informed that pursuant to Section 125 ofthe Act, the

Company will be obliged to transfer to the credit of the said Fund any money lying in the Unpaid

Dividend Accounts remaining unclaimed for a period ofseven years from the dates they became first

due for payment. In accordance with provisions of the said Section, no claim shall lie against the

Company or the Fund in respect ofindividual amounts ofdividend. The Company has uploaded the

details ofunpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company on the website of the Company

www.nikhiladhesives.com and on the website ofthe Ministry ofCorporat/e Affairs.

In respect of unclaimed dividend for the Year 2009710, an amount of Rs. 1,13,569 which was

required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company in

October, 2017, is pending transfer. The management is taking necessary steps to comply with

transfer ofthe said amountto the Fund.

9] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [SEBI] has mandated the submission of Permanent

Account Number [PAN] by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in

electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with

whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can

submit their PAN to the Company/ Sharex Dynamic [India] Pvt. Ltd.

10] The Ministry of Corporate Affairs [MCA] has taken a "Green Initiative in Corporate Governance"

allowing paperless compliances by Companies through electronic mode. Companies are now

permitted to send various notices/documents to its members through electronic mode to the

registered e- mail addresses of members. Members holding shares in demat/erialized form are

requested to register their e- mail ID with their Depository Participants and members holding

shares in physical form are requested to register their e-mail ID with Registrar and Share Transfer

Agents ofthe Company i.e. Sharenynamic [India] Pvt. Ltd.

11] Votingthrough Electronicmeans:

In compliance with provisions ofSection 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the

Companies [Management and Administration] Rules, 2014-, and Regulation 44 of SEBI[Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015 the Company is pleased to provide

members, the facility to exercise their right to vote at the Thirty Second Annual General Meeting

[AGM] by electronic means and the businessmay be transacted through e-Voting Services provided

by CentralDepositoryServices [India] Limited [CDSL]:

The instructionformembers forvoting electronimlly isas under:

(i) The voting period begins on Tuesday, 25th September, 2018 [09:00 am] and ends on the

Thursday, 27th September, 2018 [5:00 pm].During this period shareholders' of the

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-

off date [record date] of Friday the 21st September,2018, may cast their vote

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled byCDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Log on to the e-votingwebsite www.6votingindia.com

(iii) ClickonShareholders/ Members

(iv) Now, enteryour UserID

(a) ForCDSL: 16digitsbenef1ciaryID.

(b) For NSDL: 8 character DPID followed by 8digits client ID.

(0) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter folio number registeredwith the

company.
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(v) Nextenter the image Verification as displayed and clickon Login.

(vi) Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.6votingindia.com and

voted on an earliervoting ofany company, thenyour existingpassword is to be used.

(vii) Ifyou are a firsttime user follow the steps given below:

 

For member holding shares in demat form and physical form

 

Enter your 10 digit alphanumeric PAN issued by income mx department

PAN [Applicable for bath demat shareholder as well as physical shareholder]

 

. Member who have not updaled their PAN with the company/ depository parlicipanl are

requested to use the first two letteroltbetr name and n digitol'lhesequence number [refer

serialno printed (inthenameandaddressslicker/Ballnll'rirm/mail] inPAN field

. Incasethesequencenumberislessthan8digitentertheapplicablenumherniD'sbeforelhe

number afler the first two character or the name in CAPITAL letter Eg tr your name is

Ramesh Kumarwilh Serial number 1Lhen enter RAUOOUDUM in [he PAN field.

 

Enter the dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth [in dd/mm/yy format) as recorded in your

D‘Vldfend hm" demataecountorintbecompanyrecordsinordertoiogin.

Details OR Date of - li’botb the details are not recorded with the depository or company please entertbe

Birth [DOB] member id/ folio number in the dividend bank details held as mentioned in

instructiontivl.

    

[viii] After entering this details appropriately, clickon "SUBMIT" tab

[ix] Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selection

screen, however members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation'

menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new

password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders forvoting

for resolutions ofany other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided thatcompany

opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your

passwordwith any other person and take utmost care tokeep your passwordconfidential

[x] For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the

resolutions contained in this Notice.

[xi] Select on the EVSN [ELECTRONIC VOTING SEQUENCE NUMBER] of NIKHIL ADHESIVES

LIMITED on whichyou choose to vote.

[xii] 0n the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against same the option

"YES/N0" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you

assent to the Resolution and option N0 impliesthatyou dissent to the Resolution.

[xiii] Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" ifyouwish to viewthe entire Resolution details.

[xiv] After selecting the resolution, ifyou have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation

box will be displayed. Ifyou wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote,

clickon "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

[xv] Once you "CONFIRM"yourvote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modifyyourvote.

[xvi] You can also take out print ofthe voting done by you by clicking on "Click here to print" option

on the Voting page.

[xvii] IfDemat account holder has forgotten the changed login password then enter the User ID and

the image verification code and clickon Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the

system

[xviii] Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSle mobile app m-Voting available for android

based mobiles. The m- Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and

Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store

respectively. Please follow the instructions as promptedby the mobile appwhile voting on your

mobile.

[xix] Note for Non-individual shareholder and custodian:

[a] Non-Individual shareholders [i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.] and Custodian are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as corporate.
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[b] A scanned copy of the registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be

emailed to heldesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

[c] After receiving the log in details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and

password. The compliance user should be able to link the account [s] for which theywish to vote

on.

[d] The list of account linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and

on approval ofthe accounts theywould be able to casttheirvote.

[e] A scanned copy ofthe Board Resolution and Power ofAttorney [POA] which they have issued in

favour ofthe Custodian, ifany, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer

to verify the same.

[f] In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions ("FAQ") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section

or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

Other General Instructions:

1] The facility for voting through ballotwill also be made available at the AGM, and member or their

proxies attending theAGM who have NOT cast their vote by remote e-voting will be able to vote

atthe AGM.

Z] The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity

share capital ofthe Company as on the cut-offdate [record date] ofthe Friday, 21st September,

2018

3] Mr. Dharmesh Zaveri, Practicing Company Secretary & Proprietor M/s D. M. Zaveri & Co., has

been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent

manner &voting by ballot at theAGM in a fair & transparent manner.

4] The scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion ofvoting at the AGM, count the vote cast

at the AGM and thereafter unblock the vote cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at

least two witnesses not in the employment of the company. The scrutinizer shall submit a

consolidated scrutinizer's report ofthe total vote castin favour ofor against the resolutions, not

later than two days after the conclusion ofthe AGM to the chairman ofthe company, who shall

counter sign the same. The chairman will declare the result ofvoting within two days after the

conclusion oftheAGM.

5] The result declared along with the scrutinizer report shall be placed on the company's website

wwwnikhiladhesives.com. The result will also be communicated to the stock exchange where

the shares ofthe company are listed.

6] Subject to receipt of the requisite number ofvote, the resolution shall be deemed to have been

passed on the date ofAGM i.e. the 28th September, 20 18.

7] All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be

open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours

[10.00 am to 6.00 pm] on all working days, up to and including the date of the AGM of the

Company.

8] Persons who have acquired the shares of the company after the dispatch ofAnnual Report and

are members as on 21st September, 2018 [being record date for the purpose ofvoting], may

send a request for obtaining their User ID and Password to sharexindia@vsnl.com or contact

Sharenynamic [India] Private Limited on 022- 28515606/28515644.
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ANNEXURE T0 NOTICE

ExplanatoryStatementpursuantto Section 102 (1) ofthe Companies Act, 201 3

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the

accompanying Notice:

Item No.5 and 6

Regulation 17[1A] of SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015

notified on May 9, 2018 prescribes that no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the

directorship ofany person as a non-aecutive director who has attained the age ofseventy five years

unlessaspecialresolutionis passedto thateffect.

Mr. M. M. Vora and Mr. H. S. Kamath who were reappointed as an Independent Directors of the

Company at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th September, 2014 for a

period offive years byway ofordinary resolution have attained the age of75 years.

In view of the said provision of SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations

20 15, NRCommittee discussed the matter and recommended the continuation ofDirectorship ofthe

above Independent Directors for the remaining period oftheirterm.

Mr. M. M. Vora is a Businessman with rich experience of forty five years in the business areas in

manufacturing oforiginal spare part for automobile, he possesses rich skill and aperience in the field

ofadministration and general business management.

Mr. H. S. Kamath Technical Expertise in production / process control and quality management, he

retired from Chairman ofheavy water board Govt.oflndia and he is conversant with the Company's

business, industry and other areas relating to the Company.

The above mentioned Independent Directors are experts in their respective fields and their

experience and valuable guidance is beneficial to the Company.

The Board based on the recommendation ofNR Committee and considering benefits ofthe expertise

of the aforesaid independent Directors, has recommended the resolution for approval of

shareholders byway ofspecialresolution.

Except the above Directors, none ofthe other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel ofthe Company

or their relatives is, in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

Item No.7

Messrs B. F. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants, [Firm Registration No-10064] were appointed as

Cost Auditors for the yearending 31st March, 20 19 by the Board ofDirectors on the recommendation

ofthe Audit Committee at a remuneration of f50,000/- Goods And Services Taxas applicable thereon

and reimbursement oftiaveling and otherincidental expenses that maybe incurred forthe purpose to

audit the cost records maintained by the Company in accordance with the Companies [Cost Records

and Audit] Rules, as amended.

As per Rule 14- of the Companies [Audit and Auditors] Rules, 2014 the remuneration payable to the

Cost Auditors as approved by the Board has to be ratified subsequently by the Members of the

Company Accordingly, consent ofthe members is sought forpassingan OrdinaryResolution as setout

at Item No.7 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the

financial yearending3 1st March, 2019.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives is, in any way,

concemedorinterested,financiallyorotherwise,inthe resolution setoutatItemno.7ofthe Notice.
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Disclosure required pursuant to Regulation 36 (3] of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2 01 5and Secretarial Standard -2 of[CS]

       

Name of the Director Mr. Tarak I. Sanghavi Mr. M. M. Vora Mr. H. S. Kamath

Director Identification 00519403 00245427 02628018

Number

Date of Birth/Age 02.10.1962 22.03.1939 10.06.1942

Date of Appointment Since Inception 03.02.2003 15.02.2004

Status Whole time Director Non Executive, Executive,

Independent Independent

Director Director

Qualification E. Com B Com E.E. Mechanical

Expertise in specific Market Analysis Businessman Technical

functional type &Commercial Expertise in

Management production /

process control

quality

management

 

Terms and Conditions of Reappointment on As per explanatory As per explanatory

   

Appointment / retiring by rotation statement item No. smten'ient item No.

Reappointment 5 St 6

Directorship of Other None None

Companies

Chairman/Member in the None Chairman: Chairman: None

Committees of the Boards Nomination and

0f EUIflPaniES Remuneration Member:

Committee — Nikhil Cummlttee_

Adhesives Ltd. Adheswes

Member:

Audit Committee-

Nikhil Adhesives

Ltd.

Shareholding [No. of 1,12,490 15,371

Shares)

 

Disclosure of relationships

between directors inter se

 

Mr. Rajendra I.

Sanghavi & Mr.

Umesh I. Sanghavi

are brothers of Mr.

Tarak I. Sanghavi

     
Registered Office:

315, The SummitBusiness Bay,

Behind GurunankPetrol Pump,

Opp. Cinemax,Andheri Kurla Road,

Andheri (E), Mumbai 7 400093

Date: 30‘“ May,2()18

Byorder ofthe Board ofDirectors

Umesh I. Sanghavi

ManagingDirector

SZ'ANNuAI. moman 72mg



NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED

Muhucol
wnnn ADNESIVi xmcs ml

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

Your Company's major business segments are Branded Consumer product under brand name "MAHACOL"

"I-‘ORMISOL" and "EMDILITH" and Industrial products are under various brand names such as "EMDILITH"

“EMDITEX” and “EMDICRYL”. Since last one year your Company has entered into an agreement with 2 large

companies name (i) "ASIAN PAINTS" for manufacturing and supplying various grades of adhesives and paint

emulsions (ii) “DOWCHEMICAL INTERNATIONAL PVT. LTD." for manufacturing and supplying various grades

ofpaintemulsions. These businesses are long term in nature.

Consumer Products are mainly wood Adhesives, sticker adhesives, leather adhesives and general purpose

adhesives these products are widely used by carpenters, printers, plumbers, mechanics, households, students,

offices etc.

Industrial Products segment covers products such as Industrial Adhesives, synthetic emulsions resins among

others,which caters to various industries like packaging textiles, paints, leather etc.

OUTLOOK

During the current year Goods and Service Tax [GST] was implemented due to which our Indirect Taxes have

reduced on our Consumer Products which are passed on to the customers with this we are expecting substantial

growth ofbusiness in this division in the comingyears.

The Central Statistics Office and RBI have estimated GDP growth of7.1% for the Indian economyfor 20 17-18 and

large government spending on infrastructure will help the industry grow. We expect all our divisions growth in

doubledigits.

Our Consumer Products business is focused on providing customers with a complete range of consumer

adhesives mainly wood working and packaging adhesive and rubber base adhesive. Our Adhesive Brand

"MAHACOL" "FORMISOL" and "EMDILITH" has strong market presence and is known for its product quality

among the influencers and consumers. With a nationwide network, our brand "MAHACOL" "FORMISOL" and

"EMDILITH" is consider as a respectable player in the adhesive market. We are working on having a PAN India

presence with a strong distribution network ofdealers and distributors and are expecting to grow by 40% in the

comingyear.

STRENGTH, OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS, RISKS, CONCERNS

Your company's major strength is their long time business stakeholders and also its brand image. Since 1960's

age old days ofHoechst Dyes and Chemicals and Mafatlal Dyes and Chemicals in its vast range of products that

find usage in different industries and hence there is no over dependence on any particular industries.

With successful implementation ofGST and reduction in taxes on our consumer products along with many other

factors with government focusing on ease of doing business and spending huge amount on infrastructure

developmentyour company expects great opportunity with corporate and non corporate customers.

It will be difficult to predict global market trend due to conflicts and tensions among the major countries on

various commercial issues which can lead to crisis in currencies and oil market which may affect the local

markets.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIRADEQUACY

Your Company has in place the control systems based on the use ofcomputer software that generate sufficient

management information for internal control purpose. The directors closely monitor the operations of your

Company personally Having regard to the size and nature ofthe business, your Company has adequate internal

control procedures for managerial control.

HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your companies' staffturnover ratio is very lowwhich shows high satisfaction among employees.The industrial

relations are cordial from inception till date.
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Graphical Presentation relating to the business operations

  

BUSINFSS SEGMENTS%

ConsumerProducts Industrial Products

Branded Consumer Products Segment Industrial Products contributed 77% of the volume

contributed 13% of the volume sales of the sales of the company. Industrial Products includes

Company and had a significant growth. Industrial Adhesives, Paint Emulsions, textile

This category includes Wood Adhesives, Emulsions.

Lamination Adhesives, Sticker Adhesives , Industrial Adhesives are used in packaging Cigarette

Packaging Adhesives, Art and Craft, and Automotive Industry. This category contributed

ConstructionChemicals&Footwean 23% ofsales.

Paint Emulsions 8L Textile Emulsions contributed to

54% in the overall volume sales of the company.

    

During the year company has entered into a long term agreement with Dow Chemicals International Pvt. Ltd.

for supplying ofPaint Emulsions and other products as per their requirement this will help the company to

optimum utilization of the capacity and increase the company profitability

sz'AuumL momzmnzme 10
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

MANUFACTURING DIVISION

During the year the volume wise production has increased from 32549 MT to 40700 MT registering growth of

25.04 %. However in terms ofvalue the manufacturing sales has increased from Rs. 18194 Lakhs to Rs. 24180

Lakhs registering growth of3Z.90%.This figures is not including DiscountAllowed as per Ind AS.

TRADING DIVISION

In the trading segment, the turnover has increased from Rs. 8318 Lakhs to Rs. 9381 Lakhs registering growth

of12.78%.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

Your Company's business is predominantly import- centric. lnspite ofvolatility in the foreign exchange markets

during the year under report, your company had a foreign currency gain ofRs. 161 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 80

Lakhs in the previous year.

DISCLAIMER

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describingyour Company's objectives, estimates,

expectations may he “forward-looking statements" within the meaning of applicable securities laws and

regulations. Actual resultr could differ materiallyfrom those expressed or implied. Importantfactors that could

makea difference toyourCompany 's operations include economic conditionsaffecting demand/supply, price

conditions in the domestic and overseas markets in which your company operates, changes in government

regulations, tax lawsandotherstatues.
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Nikliil Adhesives Limited

The Board ofDirectors are pleased to present the Thirty Second Annual Report together with the audited

Accounts for the financial year ended 31“ March 2018.

In Financial Year 2017718 your company has continued the phase of positive outlook and optimism in the

country due to government policieswhich had resulted in an overall improvementin the economic outlook. Even

thoughthe global economy remained lukewarm due to several factors your company has nevertheless improved

its profitability.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS :

Summary of the Financial Results for the year is as under:r

     

Parn'clllars Financial Year Financial Year

2017-18 2016-17

Gross Profit Before Depreciation and Tax 609.36 454 18

LESSI- Depreciation 176.04 148.75

Pmfit Eefnre Tax 433.32 305 43

Less:— Pruvisinri for Taxatinn

Current Tax 130.00 77.00

Deferred Tax 17.63 24.33

Pmfit After Tax 285.64 204.10

    

DIVIDEND

The Board ofDirectors has recommended prorata dividend ofRs. 1/r [Rupee One only]per equity share of face

value of Rs. 10/7 [Rupee Ten only] for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018 subject to the approval ofshare

holders.

      

RESULT OF OPERATIONS

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 %

Gross Sales Turnover 34508 29489 17.02

Net Sales Turnover 33561 26512 26.59

Other Income 69 B 762.50

Operating Profit 610 454 34.36

Net Profit 286 205 39.51

      

Detailed analysis ofthe performance ofyour Company is presented in the Management Discussion and Analysis

Reportforming part ofthis Annual Report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The deposits at the beginningofthe financial yearwere 23 1.50 Lakhs.

During the year, your Company accepted deposits amounting to 225.50 Lakhs from its members .As at 31 March,

2018, the amount of deposits stood at Rs. 438.35 Lakhs. There has been no default in repayment ofdeposits or

payment of interest during the year. All the deposits accepted by the Company are in compliance with the

requirements ofChapterV ofthe CompaniesAct, 20 13.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate Governance and a Certificate by the

Managing Director conforming compliance by all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel

with Company's Code of Conduct, ]oint Certification by the Managing Director and CFO to the Board and

Auditors' Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance are made a part of the

Annual Report.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Board at meeting held on 14th February 2018 noted that accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility Policy] Rules, 20 14.The Company

is statutorily not required to contribute any amount towards CSR for the financial year 20 17-18. Accordingly the

company has not undertakenany CSR activities during theyear under review.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by

them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) [c] of the Companies Act,

2013:

a. That in the preparation of the annual Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, the

applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Companies

Act, 2013, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b. That such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and

applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as

to give a true and fairview ofthe state ofaffairs ofthe Company as atMarch 3 1, 2018and the profit ofthe

Company for the yearended on that date;

. That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions ofCompanies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets ofthe Company and

n

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. Thatthe annual Financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

. That proper internal Financial controls were in place and that the Financial controls were adequate and

were operatingeffectively;

a:
5 That the systems to ensure compliance with the provisions ofall applicable laws were in place and were

adequate and ope rating effectively

RISK MANAGEMENTAND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's system of financial and compliance controls with reference to the financial statements and risk

management is embedded in the business process by which the Company pursues its objectives. The company

uses foreign achange forward contracts to hedge its exposure for movements in foreign exchange rate. The use

of this foreign exchange forward contract reduces the risk to the company. The company does not use these for

trading or speculative purpose. Additionally, the Audit Committee and the Board ofDirectors provide risk over

sight through their review ofpotential risks which could negatively impactthe operations, the proposed budget

and plan, the Company's strategic framework and any risks that may negatively impact it. The management is

committed to ensure an effective internal control environment commensurate with the size, scale and

complexity of the operations, which provides assurance on the efficiency of the Company's operations and

safety/security ofits assets besides orderly and legitimate conduct ofCompany's business in the circumstances,

which may reasonably be foreseen. The Company has defined organization structure authority levels delegated

powers, internal procedures, rules and guidelines for conducting business transactions.

The Company's system and process relating to internal control and procedures for financial reporting have been

designedto provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection ofunauthorized acquisition,

use or disposition ofCompany's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements and for

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities or deliberate miss-statements. Management is

responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate disclosure controls and procedures and adequate

internal controls over financial reporting with respect to financial statements besides its effectiveness in the

context of applicable regulations. The Internal Auditor, the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors

conduct from time to time an evaluation ofthe adequacy and effectiveness ofthe system ofintemal controls for

financialreportingwith respect to financial statements.

SZ'ANNuAL REPOKrzuflrzms 14



NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED

Muhucol
mm:“mm mm: ml

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial relations remained cordial throughout the year. Your Directors recognize and appreciate the sincere

and hard work, loyalty, dedicated efforts and contribution ofall the employees in the growth and performance of

the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS

In terms ofSection[s]14-9,152 and all other applicable provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013, for the purpose of

determining the directors liable to retire by rotation, the Independent Directors are not included in the total

number ofdirectors ofthe Company. Accordingly, Mr. Tarak]. Sanghavi[DIN:005194-03], Director shall retire by

rotation at the ensuring Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himselffor re-appointment as a

Directorofthe Company

The details ofDirectors seeking re-appointment Mr. Tarak]. Sanghavi as required under Regulation 36(3] ofthe

SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015 are given in the notice ofthe ensuring

Annual General Meetingwhich is being sent to the shareholders alongwithAnnual Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the company have furnished the declaration that they meet the criteria of

Independence as providedinSection 14-9 [6] oftheCompanies Act, 2013.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND COMMITTEES

During the year under review, six Board Meetings were convened and held. The details ofwhich are given in the

Reporton Corporate Governance.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OFBOARD, COMMITTEES &DIRECTORS

The Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors of the Company carried out the formal annual performance

evaluation of all the Directors and also its self-evaluation process, internally, to assess the skills set and

contribution that are desired, recognizing that competencies and experiences evolves over time. The process

was conducted by allowing the Board to engage in candid discussions with each Director with the underlying

objective of taking best possible decisions in the interest of the Company and its stakeholders. The Directors

were individuallyevaluated based on structured self-assessment and personal interaction to ascertain feedback

on well defined parameters which, internally, comprised of level of engagement and their contribution to

strategic planning and other criteria based on performance and personal attributes ofthe Directors. During the

process ofevaluation, the Board ofDirectors also reviewed and discussed the annual performance evaluation of

Directors carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. A statement in detail indicating the

manner, in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of Directors, is given in the Report on

Corporate Governancewhich forms a part ofthe Annual Report.

SELECTION ANDAPPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORSAND THEIR REMUNERATION

The Board of Directors in consonance with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration

Committee[NRC]has adopted a terms of reference which internally deals with the manner of selection of

Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The NRC recommends appointment of Director

/appointment to re-appointment of Managing Director based on their quali cations, expertise, positive

attributes and independence in accordance with prescribed provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules

framed there under. The NRC, in addition to ensuring diversity ofrace and gender, also considers the impact the

appointeewould have on Board's balance ofprofessional experience, background, viewpoints, skills and areas of

expertise.

The Board of Directors in consonance with the recommendation ofNomination and Remuneration Committee

has also adopted the Remuneration Policy for the members of the Board and Executive Management. The said

policy earmarks the principles of remuneration and ensures a well balanced and performance related

compensation package taking into account shareholders' interest, industry practices and relevant corporate

regulations in India.
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VIGIL MECHANISM [WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and

mismanagement, if any, and conducting business with integrity including in accordance with all applicable

laws and regulations. The details of the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-Blower Policy are explained in the

Reporton Corporate Governance and also postedon the website ofthe Company.

STATUTORYAUDITORS

M/s.PHD & Associates, Chartered Accountants [Firm Registration-No.111236W], were appointed as

Statutory Auditors to hold office until the conclusion ofthe ensuing Annual General Meeting ofthe Company.

In the 29th AGM Messrs PHD & Associates who were functioning as Auditors of the Company for five

consecutive years, the Board of Directors unanimously had agreed to the recommendation of the Audit

Committee and had appointed Messrs PHD & Associates as Statutory Auditors of the Company for another

term of5 [five] years from the conclusion of that Annual General Meeting 29th AGM till the conclusion of

fifth consecutive Annual General Meeting. In accordance with the first proviso of Section 139[1] of the

Companies Act, 2013 the appointment ofthe Auditors is to be ratified by members at every Annual General

Meeting.The Auditors have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that the ratification oftheir appointment,

ifmade, would be within the prescribed limits ofthe Companies Act,2013 and that they are not disqualified

forsuch appointment.

 

SECRETARIALAUDITOR

Pursuantto the provisions ofSection 204 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies [Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014-, Messrs D. M. Zaveri& Co., Company Secretaries were

appointed to undertake the Secretarial Audit ofthe Company for the year ended 31 March, 2018.The Report

of the Secretarial Auditor is given in Annexure-l, which is attached hereto and forms a part ofthe Directors'

Report.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the StatutoryAuditors or the Secretarial Auditors, save and

except the observation that a sum of ? 1,13,569 which was required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund [Fund] by the Company in the month of October, 2017, is pending transfer.

The management is taking necessary steps to comply with the transfer ofthe said amount to the Fund.

COST AUDITORS

The Board ofDirectors has appointed Messrs B. F Modi &Associates, Cost Accountants, as CostAuditors for

conducting audit ofthe cost accounts maintained by the Company in respectofthe products ofthe Company

covered under The Companies [Cost Records and Audit] Amendment Rules,2014 and fixed their

remuneration based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. The remuneration payable to Cost

Auditors is subject to ratification by the shareholders in the ensuingAnnual General Meeting ofthe Company

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statement relate

and the date ofthe report.

REGULATORY/COURT ORDERS

During the year under report no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or

tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future.

RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into during the financial year under review by the Company were on an

arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There are no material significant related party

transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated

persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All related party

transactions are placed before the meeting[s] ofAudit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the

Audit Committee is obtained for the financial year for the transactions which are ofa foreseen and repetitive in

nature.
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The statementgiving details ofall related party transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval

together with relevant documents/information are placed before the Audit Committee for review and

approval on quarterly basis. The company has developed a Policy on materiality of Related Party

Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions. The Policy on materiality of Related Party

Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the

company'swebsite and the same is available at the web linkhttp://wwwnikhiadhesives.com

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investment in pursuance to Section 186 of the Companies Act,

2013 are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

DISCLOSURE OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEYMANAGERIAL PERSONNEL,

ETC.

As required under Section 197[1Z] read with Rule 5 ofThe Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel] Rules, 20 14, the details ofthe ratio ofthe remuneration ofeach Director to the median

employee's remuneration and such other details as prescribed therein are given in Annexure-ll, which is

attached here to and forms a part ofthe Directors' Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

An Extract ofAnnual Return as per Section 9Z[3] ofthe Companies Act, 20 13 is given in Annexure- III, which

is attached here to and forms a part ofthe Directors' Report.

PARTICULARSOF EMPLOYEES

The particulars required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5[Z] of the

Companies [Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the

company as there was no employee drawing remuneration to the extentmentioned therein.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND

OUTGO

As required under Section 134 [3][m] of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies

[Accounts] Rules 2014-, the information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign

Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in Annexure-IV which is attached hereto and forms a part of the

Directors' Report.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respectofthe following items as there were

no transactions on these items during the year under review:

a. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

b. Issue of shares [including sweat equity shares] to employees of the Company under any scheme.

c. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any

remuneration or commission from any ofits subsidiaries.

d. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or 'lribunals which

impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

e. During the year under review, there were no cases filed or reported pursuant to the Sexual

Harassment ofWomen at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal] Act,2013.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Directors believe that the key to success ofanycompany are its employees. Your company has a team of

able and experienced professionals, whose dedicated efforts and enthusiasm has been an integral part of

your Company's growth. Your Directors would like to place on record their deep appreciation of their

continuous effort and contribution to the company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board desires to place on record its grateful appreciation for the excellent assistance and co-operation

received from the Government Authorities and continued support extended to the Company by the bankers,

investors, suppliers and esteemed customers and other business associates. Your Directors also wish to place

on record their deep sense of appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their unstinted

commitment and continued contributionin the performance ofthe Company

For and On Behalf ofthe Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai Raiendra ]. Sanghavi

Date: 30th May 2018 Chairman
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ANNEXTURE I

Form No. MR-3

For the Financial year ended 31“ March, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and rule ND. 9 0/019 Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Nikhil Adhesives Limited

1 have conducted the secretarial audit ofthe compliance ofapplicable statutory provisions and the adherence to

good corporate practices by Nikhil Adhesives Limited [hereinafter called 'the Company']. Secretarial audit

was conducted in a mannerthat provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing myopinion thereon.

Based on my verification ofthe Nikhil AdhesivesLimited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my

opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial year ended on 31“ March, 2018,

compliedwith the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes

and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subjectto the reporting made hereinafter:

l have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the

Companyfor the financial year ended on 3151 March, 20 18, according to the provisions of:

[i] The Companies Act, 2013[the Act] and the rules made thereunder;

[ii] The Securities Contracts [Regulation] Act, 1956 ['SCRA'] and the rulesmade thereunder;

[iii] The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and the Bye-laws framed thereunder;

[iv] Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investmentand External Commercial Borrowings;

[v] The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board oflndia

Act, 199Z['The 5531']:-

[a] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers]

Regulations,2011;

[b] The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia [Prohibition oflnsiderTrading] Regulations, 20 15;

[c] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements]

Regulations,2009;

[d] The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia [Share Based Employee Benefits] Regulations, 2014;[Not

relevant / applimble duringthe year underreview)

[e] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Issue and Listing of Debt Securities] Regulations,

2008;[Not relevant/ applimble duringthe year underreview)

[f] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents]

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealingwith client;

[g] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Delisting of Equity Shares] Regulations, 2009;[Not

relevant / applimble during the year underreview)

[h] The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia [BuybackofSecurities] Regulations, 1998;[Notrelevant/

applicableduringtheyearunder review)

[i] The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements]

Regulations,2015
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1 further report thatbased on the explanation given by the management ofthe Company, there are no other laws

thatare specifically applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliancewith the applicable clauses to the following:

[i] Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute ofCompany Secretaries of India and approved by the

Governmentoflndia, as applicable under the CompaniesAct 2013;

[ii] The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited in accordance with SEBl

[Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations 2015

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,

Guidelines, Secretarial Standards, etc. mentioned above except that certain e—farms that were delayed in filing

within the due date which are in process offiling. Further there is delay in transferring/crediting those shares in

respectofwhieh dividend has nutbeenpaid or claimedfurseven eonseeutiveyears or more to the demataceuuntof

InvestarEdueatianandeteetian Fundauthurity which were duefur transferduring theyear.

I further report that, the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company is duly constituted with proper balance ofExecutive,

Noanxecutive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the composition ofthe Board of

Directors thattook place duringthe period under review

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and

clarificationson the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meetings.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the

minutes ofthe meetings ofthe Board ofDirectors orCommittee ofthe Board, as the casemay be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and

guidelines.

1 further report thatduring the period under review:

1. The Company has passed special resolution through postal ballot for change ofits registered office outside

the local limits ofthe city, i.e. from Shreeji Estate, College Road, Vadkun College, Dahanu r 401 602 to315,

The Summit Business Bay, Behind Gurunank Petrol Pump, Opp. Cinemax, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri

East, Mumbai 7400 093.

2. The Company has passed special resolution through postal ballot for Issue of7,00,000 Equity Shares ofthe

face value ofRs.10/- [Rupees Ten Only] fully paid up for cash at issue price ofRs. 206/- [including premium

of Rs.196/-] per share on Preferential Basis to the Non-Promotersin accordance with the provisions of

Companies Act, 2013 and Chapter VI] of Securities and Exchange Board of India [Issue of Capital and

Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2009.

ForD. M. Zaveri & Co

Company Secretaries

DharmeshZaveri

[Proprietor]

ch. No.: 5418

CP No.: 4363

Place: Mumbai

Date: 301 May 20 18.
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ANNEXURE II

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 0F

MANAGERIALPERSONEEL), RULES, 2014

1. The ratio remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employee and percentage

increase in remunerationofDirector,CFOand CS:

      

Remuneration Remuneration "/u increase in Ratio/Times

Sr. No. Name Designation Paid for Paid for FY rammmm“ P” mama“
In the ofemployee

“(2017-1238) 2016-178) FY2017-lB Remuneration

1. Mr. Rajendra Sanghavi chairman 10.08.000/- 10.08.000/— - 3.60

2. Mr. Umesh Sanghavi. Managing 13.16.448/- 13.16.448/- - 4-70

Director

3. Mr. Tarak Sanghavi. Director 10.08.000/- 10.08.000/— - 3.60

4. Ms. Ami Parikh CFO 1,20.150/- 60.000/— - 0.43

5. Mr. Nirmal Tiwan' crocs 3,50.216/- 1.31.250/- - 1.25

       

2. Percentage increase in median remuneration:

 

Median remuneration ofemplayees in Median remuneration oi'employees in
Percentage increase

FY2017-18R) FYZOlfi-17R)

 

2,79,996/— 2,64,000/- 6.06

     

3. No.ofpermanentemployees as on 31 3 2013: 202 employees.

4. Relationship between average increase in remuneration and companyperformance:

The increase inremuneration is based on the company's performance and also includes various

other factors like individual performance,experience, academic background and future growth

prospects.

5. The KMP Remuneration is notwhollyrelated to the Companies Performance. Theyare paid as per

their terms ofemployment. As such there is no increase in the remuneration ofthe KMP.
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6. Variation in market capitalization, PE ratio:

    

Particulars As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017 Percentage increas

Market Capitalization of the Company ? 11,024,02,205/r ? 29,57,72,085/r 272-72

PE Ratio 33.56 14.52 131.13

Closing Market Share Price [ESE] 239.95 75.95 215.93

      

7. Comparison between average percentile increase and salaries of employees [excluding managerial

personnel] and percentile increase in managerial remuneration:

 

Average percentile increase in Percentile increase in

salaries ol employees other than managerial personnel lustification

managerial personnel in FY 2017-18 remuneration in FY 2017-18

 

. _ _ _ The average percentile increases

There is no increase in managerial

34.75% personnel remuneration for FY

2017718

in the salaries ofemployees

others than managerial personnel

in FY 20177133 is in accordance

     

B. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by Directors:

There is no variable component in the remuneration paid to Directors.

9. There are 8 employees who have received remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director. Their ratios to

the highest paid director are 1.15,1.23,1.63,1.63,1.67,1.87,1.90,3.57.

10. This is toaffirm that the above remuneration is paid as perthe Remuneration Policy ofthe Company.
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ANNEXURE III

FORM N0. MGT-9 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR

ENDED 0N 3ISTMARCH, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management

and Administration] Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

   

CIN: L51900MH1986PLC041062

Registration Date 29.09.1986

Name of the Company Nikhil Adhesives Limited

 

Category/SubrCategory of the Company Public Limited Company

 

315, The Summit Business Bay, Behind Gurunanak Petrol

Pump, Opp. Cinemax, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri [East],

Mumbai, Maharashtra PIN Coder400093

Address of the Registered Office

and Contact details

 

Whether listed Company Listed Company [ESE LTD.)

 

Sharex Dynamic [India] Pvt. Ltd. Unit No.1 Luthra

Industrial Premises, Safed Pool, Andheri Kurla Road,

Andheri (East) Mumbair400077

Name, Address and Contact details

of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

  

II. BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 

Name and Description of main NIC Code ofthe % to total turnover

sr' “0' Products] Services Product/Service of the Company

 

Polymeric Emulsions Adhesives,

1. 24295 100%

Plasticizers & solvent based Adhesives

     

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARYAND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

 

Sr. No. Name 8‘ address 0‘ CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/Associate % ofshares held
the company

    

 

N.A.
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

(i)Category-wise Shareholding

 

"/n 

     

Ch
Categnry of No. nfShares held al the beginning onhe year No. of shares held at lhe end onheyear as a“???

Shareholders as an 01.04.2017 on 31.03.2010 mg g

year

0

W T713.
Demm Physical Toml Tom! Demnl Physical Toml

Shares
Shares

A. Prommer

[1]Indinn

(aundlvldual/HUF 2,501,010 r 2,501,010 54.437 2,501,010 r 2,501,010 54.437 79 705

(b)Central V V V V V V 7

Government

[clstale

Governmenus) r r r r r r r 7

through a Corporation

 

[d]Eudles Corporate - - . . . . . .

 

[c]Eank/Fl - - . . . . . .

 

[QAny uihcr - - . . . . . .

 

Shh-Tommu) 2,501,010 2,501,010 54.437 2,501,011) 2,501,010 54,437 79785

 

(2]Fureign

 

[aijlcrlndlvlduals r r r . . . . .

 

[b]0therrlndlvldual: r r r r r r , ,

 

(cmodles Corporale r r r . . . . .

 

[d]Hank/FI r r r . . . . .

 

[fJAny olher r r r r r r r r

 

SuhrToml(A)[2) r r r . . . . .

 

Total shareholding

ufPromoler 2,501,010

(A]=(A)(1)+(A)(2]

2,501,010 54.437 2,501,010 2,501,010 54,437 -9785

 

B Public

Sharelwlding
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[1)lnsfituu0ns

 

[ajMumalFund r 900 900 0020 r 900 900 0,020 70003

 

[hjflank/FI r r r r . . . . .

 

[E] Central

Government

 

[dlStalc

Guvernmenlb]

 

[e)Ven|urchp1Ld| r r r r . . . . .

 

(1)1030me r r r r r . . . .

 

[ngllg r . r r . . . . .

 

[thore1gn Vemure

Capual Fund:

 

[1)0rher(Spec1fy) r r r r . . . . .

 

Suh-Tntal(|?](1) r 900 900 0020 r 900 900 0,020 70003

 

[2)Nnn-lnstitutions

 

[ajfiodlcs Corpuratc

 

[1)1nman 5,22,000 4,200 5,27,000 13533 8,13,308 4,200 13,17,500 17.794 4261

 

[11)0vcnca: - - . . . . . . .

 

[b)|ndlv1(ludl: r r r r r . . . .

 

001.007.00.11

Shareholders holdmg

        

3,55,107 1,41,030 4,117,037 12 703 3,513,522 1,313,130 0.00152 12,995 71 735
nnmmal Share 03me

up to Rs 1 lac

0001011210031

Sharcmfim hwmg 333,975 19,000 352.975 9 064 7.35033 19,000 7,54,033 10 412 7 34s
normndl Share 01,1100

1n ems; ofR<1 1m-

[c1001ch (Specny) r r r r r r r r r

SENS“5mm"; 100 r 100 0 003 100 r 100 0,002 70 001

[Hymns/01:0; 2,050 7 2,050 0053 3,350 r 5,300 0073 002

[unmemmg

Membm/cleanng 13,220 r 13,228 0 330 10,737 r 10,737 0 234 70100

House

Suh-Tnlal(E](2) 12,27,260 1,55,130 1,39,2390 35,755 19,31,050 1,51,33 20,92,390 35 543 9 707

1311:0011:

Sharehnlding 12,27,200 1,66,130 13,93,290 35 779 19,31,050 1,02,23 20,03,200 45 503 9 704

[B)=(B)(1]*[B)(2)

 

c.5110": held by

cuswdmn tor 511115 7 r r r r . . .

& ADlls

  GRAND 01'“
3,723,270 1,56,030 3,094,300 100.00 44,320.70 1.62.23 4,594,300 100.0 0.001
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[ii]Shareholding of Prommers

     

  

                                   

shareholding at the beginning of the sharehniding at the end orthe year as on 9/5 change in

year as on 01.04.2017 31.03.2010 Share

5“ Shamhflmer's No. bi /., of "/5 olShares N0. of % onetal % of shares “"3"”;

"°- "7"” shares total Pledged/Encu shares shares of Pledged/ “ME “"

shares at inbered la the encumbered Ye"

the total Shares company to total Shares

1 TARAKISANGHAVI (HUF) 53,550 1.375 r 53,550 1.155 r 70.209

2 UMESH 1. SANGHAVI [HUF] 54,700 1.405 . 54,700 1.191 . -0.214

3 ASHDK] SANGHAVI 11500 e 9907 r 71701

4 0011:5111 SANGHAV} 95,340 2 440 2 440 95,340 2 075 2 075 V0 373

5. 0015000111 SANGHAVI 1,19,700 3.074 3.074 1,19,700 2.505 2.505 -0.459

5 ASHDK] SANCHAVI [HUII] 300 0.000 . 300 0.007 . 70.001

7 RAJENDRAJ-SANGHAVI 55,100 1 415 r 55,100 1 199 r 70215

(HUF)

0. PAYALA SANGHAVI 700 0.010 r 700 0.015 r 70.003

9. ANITA 0 5405mm 239.740 5.155 7 239.740 5.210 r 70.930

10 MRUNALINI KSANGHAVI 237.000 5 00 - 237.000 5.150 - -0.920

11 VASAN'I‘HEN i SANGHAVI 245,350 5300 5300 2,45,350 5 340 5 340 V0 950

12 VASANTEEN|.SANGUAV1 254,900 5 545 r 254,900 5 540 r 70 997

H'RU 'I"

13 NIKHIL U.SANGHAVI 85,755 2 22 - 85,755 1.009 - -0.340

14 REKHA T.SANGHAVI 2.71.440 5 97 - 2,71,440 5.900 - -1.052

15 TARAKI SANGHAVI 1,12,490 1 2.995 2.009 1,12,490 2.110 2.440 70.441

15 nvm R SANGHAVI 35,150 0920 r 35,150 0.707 r 70.141

17 HEMALU SANGIIAVI 35,705 2.203 r 35,705 1.057 r 70.335

10 SAGARASANGHAV} 470 0012 r 470 001 r 70 002

19 1mm 1' SANGHAVI 32,000 0022 r 32,000 0 597 r 70125

20 AMI'I'SANCHAVI 32,170 0025 r 32,170 0700 r 70125

21 101.510 5000mm 32,070 0.024 r 32,070 0.590 r 70.125

(iii) Change in Promoter's Shareholding

Prumuter s Shareholding Shareholding at the Cumulative shareholding

beginning orthe year during the year

No. of % of total shares oi No. 0! % oftotal shares onhe

Shares the Company Shares Company

At the beginning ofthe year No change during the year

Date Wise Increase/ Decrease in Premeters

Share holding during rhe year specifying the No change during the year

reasuns for increase/ decrease [e.g

allntment/ transfer] bonus/ sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year No change during the year
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[iVJShareholding Pattern oftop Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

                                                     

Sr. No. Shareholding Daze Increasing/ Kcasnn Cumulative

11...... at the Decreasing in Shareholding

beginning shareholding during 1112my

No. a! "In nitml Nu. of "/n 5110131

Shares Sham “1 Shares Shares of

"'5 1115

“MW f‘lmmanv

1. VASANT POLYMERS & 31,09,000 7 935 01/04/2017

CHEMICALS PVT LTD.

19/01/2018 6,000 Buy 3,15,000 8.098

rclaslng Ea1ance 3.151101) 5 555 31/03/2015 3,15,000 5.555

2. KARAN MANDMERS PVT. LTD 2.25.501) 49111 01/01/2017

-Closirig Balance 2.25.500 4 91 31/03/2018 No Change 2,25,600 4 91

3 AJAY DILKUSH SARUPRIA 200,000 4 353 0l/04/2017

{losing Balance 2,00,000 4 353 31/03/2018 No Change 2,00,000 4.353

3. VARUN DADA 1,011,000 2 177 01/04/2017

'ClDSlflg Kalancc 1,00,000 2177 31/03/2018 No Change 1,00,000 2 I77

4 CHANRANIWEP SINCH 100,000 2177 0l/04/2017

{losing Balance 1.00.000 2 177 31/03/2018 No Change 1,00,000 2.177

5. DlVYAM TIE UP LLP 1,160 0029 14/04/2017

21/04/2017 12.135 Buy 13,295 0.341

25/01/2817 15,555 Buy 29,355 0.751

05/05/2017 6,800 Buy 35,151) 0928

12/05/2017 769 Buy 35,919 0.948

26/05/2017 19,627 Buy 56,546 1.452

02/06/2017 4,303 Buy 60,849 1.563

16/06/2017 15,955 8uy 75,805 1972

21/07/2017 350 Buy 77,355 1.986

27/10/2017 1 Buy 77,356 1.955

15/12/2017 5,500 Buy 52,555 2.125

Clusmgkalancc 82,855 1803 31/03/2018 82,856 1803

5. UMESH MORARII THAKKAR 91.872 2 359 01/04/2017

07/04/2017 71000 Snld 90,872 2.333

21/04/2017 2000 Buy 92,872 2.385

28/04/2017 155 Bny 93,027 2.3139

05/05/2017 508 Buy 93,527 2 402

19/05/2017 72000 Sold 91,527 2 35

25/05/2817 .1151 55111 90,375 2.321

16/06/2017 7971 Sold 59,185 2.295

12/01/2015 710475 Sold 78,929 2.1127

09/02/2018 -200 Sold 78,729 2.022

09/03/2018 1000 Buy 79,729 2.047

{105mg Balance 79,729 1 735 31/03/2010 79,729 1.735

7. DHEERAI KUMAR LOHIA 67,303 1 728 01/04/2017   32NDANNUAL REPomun r 2515 27
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24/11/2017 2,244 Buy 59,547 1 705

01/12/2017 509 Buy 70,155 1 002

{105011; Balance 70,155 1527 31/03/2013 70,155 1527

VISEN INDUSTRIES LTD 93,453 2 399 01/04/2017

05/10/2017 71000 Sold 92,453 2 374

13/10/2017 73000 Sold 89,463 2 297

20/10/2017 -3000 351.1 05,453 2 220

27/10/2017 72000 5501 04,453 2 159

03/11/2017 73000 5501 01,453 2 092

10/11/2017 71000 Sold 00,453 2 055

22/12/2017 71000 50101 79,463 2040

29/12/2017 71000 Salt] 70,453 2015

05/01/2010 -1304 Sold 77,079 1 979

12/01/2010 71000 5501 75,079 1 954

19/01/2010 75000 5501 71,079 1 025

26/01/2011] 71050 Sold 70,019 1793

02/02/2010 71055 351.1 50,953 1 771

09/02/2010 -245 Sold 50,710 1 755

15/02/2010 72050 5501 55,550 1 712

23/02/2010 71701 5501 54,079 1 555

02/03/2010 7557 55111 54,222 1549

16/03/2010 71000 Salt] 63,222 1 623

{105mg 0010050 53,222 1375 31/03/2010 53,222 1375

SANGHETHA S 55,590 1 453 01/04/2017

14 04 2017 71590 5501 55 000 1 412

21 04 2017 71000 5501 54 000 1 307

19 05 2017 71100 5501 52 900 1350

25 05 2017 7900 Sold 52 000 1335

09 05 2017 71700 Sold 50 300 1292

30 05 2017 7235 5501 50 055 1205

07 07 2017 7575 5501 49 390 1250

01 12 2017 71000 5501 47 590 1222

15 12 2017 71000 55m 45 790 1 175

29 12 2017 7450 Sold 45 340 1 154

05 01 2010 7900 55111 44 440 1 141

12 01 2010 71090 5501 42 550 1093

19 01 2010 72150 55m 40 390 1037

02 02 2010 7270 Sold 40 120 1.03

09 02 2010 71530 55111 30590 0991

rClosIng Balance 30 590 0.04 31 03 2010 30 590 0.04

HRIGHTLICHT AGI' CY 70,000 1797

PRIVATE LIMITED 01/04/2017

28/04/2017 712950 50101 57,050 1465

05/05/2017 710050 Sold 47,000 1207

12/05/2017 72000 Sold 45,000 1 155

rClosIng Balance 45,000 0 979 31/03/2010 45,000 0 979
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(v)Shareholding of directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

                           

Sr Particulars Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during

Nn. nmie year uie year

No. of Shares n/ii oltotal Shares No. ofShares % of total Shares of

niche Company iiie Company

1. Mr. Rajendra [. Sanghavi

Atthe beginning emie ear 119.700 3.074 1.19700 3.074

At the End Ofthe year 1,19 700 2.505 119 700 2.505

2. Mr. Umesh 1. Sanghavl

At the beginning of the year 95 340 2.445 95 340 2.445

At the End ofthe year 95 340 2.075 95 340 2.075

3_ Mr. Tarak 1. Sanghavl

At the beginning ofthe Year 1,12,490 2.889 1 12,490 2.889

At the End of the year 112,490 2440 1.12.490 2.440

4. Mr. M. M .Vera

Althe beginning emie year 33,071 0.059 33,071 0.059

Atthc End afthc year 15,371 0.395 15,371 0.395

5. Ms. [shlla T. Gandhi

Atthc beginning ofthc year 1,000 0.025 1,000 0.025

At the End emie year 1,000 0.022 1,000 0.022

a. Mr, 11. s. Kamath

Althe beginning emie year 400 0.010 400 0.010

A1 the End orthe year 700 0.010 100 0.010

7. Ms. Ami Parikh

Al me beginning rimie year 32,170 0.025 32,1 70 0.025

A1 the End of the year 32,170 0.700 32,1 70 0.700
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness ofthe Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due [or payment

[Amount in lakhs]

Particulars Serured Loans Unsecured Lnans Deposits Tatal

excluding depasits lndebledne

Indebtedness at the beginning of

the financial year

(i) PrincipalAmnun’

1874 65 1216.00 231.50 333215

(iii interest due but nut uaid

(iiilinlerest accrued but not cue

* V 20.73 20.75

Tolalflvlhlll] 187465 1226.00 252,23 335158

Change in lndcbledncss dining the

finanzlal year

tAddition

0.00 - 775.50 77550

~Redutti‘0ri

86.58 1226.00 18.65 1331.23

Nuchlnge 85-58 1215.00 206-85 1106.03

Indebtedness at the end of

(he finzndal year

(i) PiincipalAmnunt

1788.07 0 00 433.35 2226.42

(ii) interest due but not said

(iiilinterest accrued but not one

- - 43.35 43.35

Tolalfio 1785! 07 0.00 481.70 2269.77

        

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

ARemnneratiunin ManagingDireclnr

(Amoum in Rs. a

            

 

Sr. Umesh l. Raiendra |. Tarak 1.

Sanghavi Saughavi Sanghavi

No. Particulars 0! Remuneration (Managing [Dinner]

Director) [Chairman]

1. Gross saiary 13,16,448 10,08,000 10,00,000

[a)S:IlLiryns pcrpmvisians cominod in section 17m

2. Stock Options - - -

3. Sweat Equity - i -

4. C0mmissiun»as % or profit-others, specify - -

5. Others (Company's contribution to Provident and - » -

Superannuation Fund(s} [n Lhe extent not taxable]

TumflA) 13,16,448 10,08,000 10,03,000

Ceilingaswrdiem 4o Lakhs as per Schedule 0f

Ihc Campanics Act, 2013.
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[Amount in Rs ?]

 

Sr No.

Particulars of

Remuneration

Name of Director Total Amount

 

Independent Directors M M.Vora H.S.Kamath [slum Gandhi

 

Foes foratlcndlng

Board Conrminee Meetings

46.000 46,000 49,450 1,41,450

 

Commission -

 

timer-s. please specily

 

Total“) 46.000

 

46,000 49.450 1.41.450

 

Other Non-Executlve Directors

  

Fee for attending

Board Committee meetings

 

Commission

 

Others. please specify

 

Total[Z)

 

Total[E)=(1+Z)

  

- 1,411,450

   

verall Ceilingas penile Au NA

  

C) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director/Manager/Whole time Director

                        

Sr.Nn. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Ms. Ami Parikh MLNinnal'l‘iVlrari Total Amount

(cm) (15) (in Rupees)

1_ Gross salary 1.20.150 3.50.216 4.70.366

[a)Salary as per pmvrsruns Contained in section 17

(1]othelncome’l‘axACt.1961

[b)Va1uc ofperquisiles u s17

2. Stock ODtlonS - -

3_ Sweat Eaultv ,

4 Commission- ,

as % of profit- others. specify

5. Others. please specifyrRetiral/Retirementbenefits .

Tolal(C] 1.20.150 3.50.216 4.70.366

Vll. PENALTlES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING 0F OFFENCE

Type Section Brief Details of Authority Appeal made.

omie Description Penalty/Punishmenl/Cumpuunding ifany

Compani fees imposed

es Act

Company / B. Directors / C. Other Officers in Default

Penalty NONI-I

Punishment NONE

Compounding NONF.
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ANNEXURE IV

DISCLOSURE OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT G0

The Information under Section 134(3) ofthe Companles Act, 2013 read wuh Rule 8 (3) ofthe Companles (Accounts)

Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2018 IS given here below and Forms part ofthe Dlrectors Report

A) Conservation ofEnergy:

The Company has awell structured energy management system in place and regular efforts are made to

optimize process parameters and energy conservation. Additionally, while undertaking modernization

and technological upgradation ofproduction facilities, due consideration is also given in selection ofplant

and equipments which conforms to the best in class energy conservation parameters. The other

identified key initiatives for conservationofenergy during the year were-

1] The stepstaken orimpactonconservation ofenergy:

a] Continuous replacement of incandescent bulbs with compact fluorescent [CFLs] and LED

bulbs. These are energy efficient modern alternatives which save energy considerably &

helps to reduce energy consumption.

b] Installation ofVFD[variable frequency drive], the electronic device on the electrical motors,

where the energy consumption is very high, by which considerable amount ofenergy is saved

resulting in conservation ofenergy.

c] Capacities are installed for effective distribution ofElectricity supply and improve the power

factor. The company has carried outAutomization of this system, resulting in better control

and improving further power factor.

:1) Energy also can he saved by hener unlizanon. Stafflswell tralned accordlngly. Runnlng ofequlpments

unnecessary alsoresults lnwastage ofenergy. Energyls conservedhysmpplngthewastage.

e] Undertaken thickplantation to help reducingpollution.

f) Upgradation ofeffluenttreatment plantis continued.Treated water is used forwashing& cleaning.

g) Waterisconsumedveryefficiently avoiding anylosses.Monitoringisdone on dayto daybasis.

h] Treated efficientwateris used.

2) The stepstaken bythecompany for utilizingalternate sources of energy:

a] Alternative energy is any energy source that is an alternative to Fossil Fuel. There are various

sources of alternate energy i.e. solar, wind, geothermal, biomass, bio fuels, hydropower etc. Solar

power is the most convenient of all which can be made use of by installing solar panels and

converting solar energy into directly electrical energy.

Management has understood the advantages of solar power and initiated the process to install

solar panels which will help considerably to reduce power bill as well as conserving energy and in

turnhelping to reduce pollution.

3) The mpitalinvestment on energy conservation equipments:

Rupees SixLakhs were spenton energy conservation equipments.
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B) Technologyabsorption:

1) The efforts made towardstechnology absorption:

We have a state of the art research and development laboratory to conduct new product developments,

newapplications development to meet customer needs and business aspirations.

2] The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import

substitution, etc.:

lmprovisation in products quality helps to retain and increase the market share. Product development

too helps to reduce cost and sustain ability in market. We constantly look for process improvisation at

manufacturing level to reduce energy consumptions, minimize waste generation and to produce cost

effective products in line with environmental policies.

3) In use ofimported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the

beginning ofthe financial year]

Not applicable as no technology was imported during the last three years.

4) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

Rupees 91 Lakhs were spent on Research and Development.

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and expenditure are contained in Note No.38 in the Notes to the

Financial Statements.

For and On Behalf ofthe Board ofDirectors

Place: Mumbai Raiendra I. Sanghavi

Date: 30th May 2018 Chairman
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company's Philosophy on CorporateGovernance

Your Company firmly believes in and continues to practice good Corporate Governance. Your Company's

essential character is shaped by the ethical practices in the conduct of its business transparency,

professionalism and accountability. Your Company continuously endeavors to improve on these aspects on an

ongoing basis. In order to achieve the objective, your Company is driven by the following guiding principles:

- Improving the effectiveness ofthe Board ofDirectors in supervising management; and

- Improving the quality ofinformation and communicationwith stakeholders.

Your Companybelieves that these two principleswill result in a better shareholders value.

Board ofDirectors

The Board of Directors of your Company comprises of Executive Chairman, Managing Director, Executive

Director and Independent Non Executive Directors. The Managing Director ofyour Company is responsible for

day to day operations and the overall business ofyour Company.

Composition ofourBoard andthe No. ofDirectorshipheld byeach Director:

        

No_ of Attendance No. of

Name ofthe Board At Annual flther No. of other Committee

Director Sums Meflings General Dim—Pm“ Membership

attended Meeting 'Shlps

Chairman Member

Mr. R. ]. Sanghavi Executive Chairman, 5 Attended 1 r r

Promoter

Mr. U. I. Sanghavi Managing Director, 6 Attended 1 - -

Promoter

Mr. T. I. Sanghavi Executive Director, 6 Attended Nil 7 r

Promoter

Mr. M. M. Vora Non-Executive, 6 Not Nil 1 2

Independent Director Attended

Mr. H. S. Kamath Noanxecutive, 4 Not Nil - 2

Independent Director Attended

Mrs. Ishita Gandhi Non-Executive, 6 Attended Nil 2 2

Independent Director
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Inter-5e relationship betweenthe Directors

Mr. Umesh Sanghavi, Mr. Tarak Sanghavi and Mr. Rajendra Sanghavi are brothers. There is no relationship

betweenanyofthe NonsExecutivelndependentDirectors

Board Meetings

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2018, Six Board Meetings were held on 26" May, 2017, 14"

September, 2017,14‘"December,2017, 15"]anuary, 2018,14” February 2018and 07‘” March, 2018.

The 315‘AnnualGeneral Meeting ofthe companywas held on 28‘” September, 2017.

All material information are circulated to the Directors before the meeting or placed at the meeting including

minimum information as required under AnnexuresX to the Listing Agreement[s]. All the directors have

complete and unrestricted access to any information required by them to understand the transactions and take

decisions. This enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively and make an informed decision.

The compliance report ofall lawsapplicable to your Company as prepared and compiled and circulated to all the

Directors alongwith the Agendaand placed/reviewed ineach Board Meeting.

The Board has laid downaCode of Conductfor all BoardMembers and seniormanagementpersonnelofyour

Company and the same has been posted on the website of your Company For the year under review, all

Directors and senior management personnel of your Company have affirmed their adherence to the

provisionsofthe saidCode.

Brief resume and profile of a Director retiring by rotation and eligible for resappointmentat the ensuing

Annual General Meeting [AGM] are given in the NoticeofAGM ofyour Company, annexed to this AnnualRepoi‘t.

AuditCommittee

The terms of reference, role and scope of the Audit Committee are in line with those prescribed by

Regulation 18 read with Schedule I] [ Part C] of SEB] [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements]

Regulations,2015.Your Company also complies with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act,

2013pertaining to Audit Committee and its functioning.

Details ofthe meetings held bytheAudit Committeeare as follows:

    

Sr. Name of Status No. of No. of Date ofAudit

No. Meetings Meetings Committee Meetings

the Direct“ held attended

1. Mr. M. M. Vora (Member) Non Executive 4 4 26‘” May, 2017

/ Independent

2. Mr. H. S. Kamath {Member} Non Executive 4 4 14‘h September, 2017

/ Independent

14‘h December, 2017

3. Mrs. Ishita Gandhi [Chairman] Non Executive 4 4 14‘h February, 2013

/ Independent
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee

   

Non-Executive Director heading the Committee Mrs. Ishita T.Gandh1

Compliance Officer Mr. Nirmal Tiwari

Number ofshareholders complaints received so far Nil

 

Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of Nil

Shareholders

 

Number ofpcnding Complaints Nil

    

Nomination andRemuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee inter alia includes determination of your

Company's policyon specific remuneration packages for Directors.

            

Sr. Name olthe Status No. of No. ofMeetings Date of

No. Director Meetings attended. Remuneration

held Committee

Meetings

1. Mr. H. S. Kamam Non Executive / 1 1 26"- May 2017

(Member) Independent

2. Mr. M. M. Vora Non Executive / 1 1 14‘“ February,2018

(Chairman) Independent

3. Mrs. lshita Gandhi Non Executive / 1 1

(Member) Independent

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy ofthe Company is to ensure thatexecutive directors ofthe Company are rewarded in a

fair and responsible manner, for their individual contributions to the success of your Company. The

remuneration paid to the Executive Directors is recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and approved by the Board ofDirectors in the Board

meeting. subject to the subsequent approval by the shareholders at the general meeting and such other

authorities as and when required. Non 7 Executive Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending

Boardmeetings.
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Remuneration to Directors

The remuneration details for the financial year 2017-18 are as follows:

       

Contribution

C I I

s l m Sim": T t 1 I?“ Ira;
Name ofthe a arr _ _ _ Fees 0 a end

Directors Status Prnvident Commission

(z) Fund (a) (a) (No.0f

R) years)

E 1'
Mr. R. I. Sanghavi m“ M 9,00,000 1,08,000 - - 10,03,000 SYcars

Chairman

M
Mr. 0.] Sanghavi ,anag‘"g 11,75,400 1,41,080 - - 13,16,448 SYears

DII'ECKUI’

E ' 1‘

Mr. T. 1. Sanghdvl few we 9,00,000 1,08,000 - - 10,08 000 5Years
Director

Nun

Mr. M. M Vera Executive/ N.A - ' 45,000 46,000 N.A

Independent

Non

Mr.l-I S,Kamalh Executive/ N.A - ' 46,000 46,000 N.A

Independent

Mrs lshita No"‘ V “mum N.A - r 49,450 49,450 N.A

bandhl
Independent

          

Notice period for the Directors is as applicable to the senior employees ofyour Company No severance fee is payable

to the Directors on termination of employment. Your Company does not have a scheme for stock options for the

Direaorsorlheemployees.

Shareholding of the Non Executive Directors as on 31" March 2018

 

Name ofthe Director Nature of Directorship No of Shares held Percentage to the

paid-up capital

   

Mr. M. M. Vora Independent 15.371 0334

Mr. H. S. Kamath Independent 700 0.015

Mrs. Ishlta Gandhi Independent 1,000 0.022
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IndependentDirectors Meefing:

During the year under review, a separate meeting oflndependent Directors was held on 14th February, 2018,

interalia, to discuss:

' Evaluation ofthe performance ofNon-lndependentDirectors and Board ofDirectors as awhole;

' Evaluation ofthe performance ofthe Chairman ofthe Company, taking in to account the views ofthe

Executive and Non-Executive Directors; and

' Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and the

Board that is necessary for the Board to effectivelyand necessarily perform its duties.

All the Independent Directors ofyour Company were presentin the meeting.

Performance Evaluation ofBoard, Committees and Directors

A formal annual evaluation was carried out by the Board ofits own performance and that ofits committees and

individual directors. During theyear under review, one meeting ofthe lndependent Directors was held wherein

the performance ofnon-independent directors, Chairman [Non-aecutive] ofyour Company and the Board as a

whole were reviewed. The performance evaluation ofCommittees and Independent Directors was carried out

by the entire Board, excluding the director being evaluated. The Independent Directors also assessed the

quality, quantity and timelines offlow ofinformation between your Company management and the Board that

is necessaryfor the Directors to effectively and necessarily perform their duties. The Board, it's Committees and

Directors evaluation provided a formal process ofcommunication in raising issues that might nototherwise be

vetted by the Board, with the underlying objectives to develop an action plan to improve the Board

performance, interalia, by ensuring compliance with the requirements ofthe Companies Act, 20 13 and code of

corporate governance.

The structure valuation process was focused on identifying areas of improvement, if any, such as creating

balance of power between the Board and management, long term strategy, more effectively fulfilling the

Board's oversight responsibilities, the adequacy ofcommittee[s] structures, the assessment ofBoard culture to

ascertain whether the same is conducive to attract right individuals to join the Board and updating the

evaluation process itself.

A review of fiduciary duties of the Board, governance policy adopted by your Company and acquaintance and

familiarization of Independent Directors with your Company and its business model, their roles, rights,

responsib ities in your Company, nature ofthe industry inwhichyour Company operates, etc. and contribution

by each director, committees ofthe Boardwas also carried out during the process ofevaluation. The appraisal of

the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and his level ofengagement in the affairs ofyour Company

was an importantcomponent ofthe Board evaluation.

The final evaluation was thereafter deliberated and assessed taking into account inputs from the Board about

evaluation of independent directors and various Committees of the Board and suggesting action plan for

improving Boardperformance and plan for next Board, its Committee[s] and individual director's evaluation.

General Body Meetings

The last three Annual General Meetings ofyour Company were held atthe Registered Office ofthe Company on 26th

September, 2015, 29th September, 2016 and 28th September, 2017 respectively.
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Disclosures

(5) There are no materially significant related party transactions entered into by your Company with its

Promoters, Directors or Management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict

with the interests ofyour Company at large .A statement in summary form oftransactions with the related

partiesduringtheyearinthe ordinarycourse ofbusinessand at arm'slength basisis disclosed in Note No.43

ofNotesto financialstatements in theAnnualReport.

[b) Your Company has complied with the requirements of Stock Exchange, Securities and Exchange Board of

India and other statutory authorities on matter relatingto capital markets during the lastthree years and

consequentlynopenaltiesorstrictureshavebeen imposed onyourCompanybytheseauthorities.

[c) YourCompany has generallycomplied with all the mandatory requirements ofthe ListingAgreementto the

extentapplicabletoyourCompany.

[d) While preparation ofthe financial statements duringthe year under review no accountingtreatment which

was different from that prescribed in the Indian Accounting Standards was followed. The significant

accounting policies applied in preparation and presentation of financial statements have been set out in

NoteNoJ ofNotesto financialslatementsintheAnnual Report.

(e) Your Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board members about the risk assessment and

minimization procedures covering the entire gamut of business operations of your Company. These

procedures are periodically reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risks by means of a

properlydefined framework

[f) The designated senior management personnel of your Company have disclosed to the Board that no

material, financial and commercial transactions have been entered into during the year under review in

which they have personal interest, which may have a potentialconflict with the interest ofyour Company at

large.

[g) The Managing Director and the CFO have furnished a duly signed Certificatetothe Board for the year ended

March 31, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of SEBI [Listing obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) and the same has been placed inthe Board Meetingheld on May 30, 2018.

[h) In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia [Prohib' 'on ofInsiderTrading) Regulations,

1992, as amended Mr. Nirmal Tiwari has been designated as the Compliance Officer ofyourCompany under

your Company's Code ofConduct for Prevention ofInsider Trading. He is responsible for adherence to the

Code by your Company and its designated employees. Your Company also adheres to the disclosure

practices forPrevention oflnsiderTradingas specified inthe aforesaid SEBI Regulations.

[i) Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy for developing a culture where it is

safe for all directors /employees to raise concerns about any unacceptable practice and any event of

misconduct. The Policy allows unrestricted access to all employees and others to approach the Audit

Committee andthere has been no instance duringthe year where any personnel has been denied access to

the Audit Committee. The quarterly report with number of complaints received underthe policy and their

outcomeisbeingplacedbeforetheAuditCommittee.

[j) Your Company is familiarizingthe Independent Directors on its Board on a quarterly basis and the detail of

familiarization programme are posted on the website of your Company and is available at the

weblinkhttp://www.nikhiladhesives.com

[k) Your Company has presently not adopted certain non-mandatory requirements in regard to

maintenance of Non-Executive Chairman's office, sending half-yearly declaration of financial

performance to each house hold of shareholders and reporting of internal auditors directly to the Audit

Committee.

MeansofCommunicafions

Quarterly / Half-yearly financial results ofyour Company are forwarded to the BSE Ltd., published in Free Press

Journal [English Daily] and Navshakti [Marathi Daily] and uploaded on your Company's website.

[www.nikhiladhesivescom].
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General Shareholder Information

 

Sr. no Particulars

 

Annual general Meeting date, time, venue

28'” September, 2018,11 00 a.m. at The

Andheri Recreation Club, Dadabhai Road,

Opposite Bhuvans ctillege Riiud, Ahdheii

[West] , Mumbai — 400058.

 

Date ofBook closure

20m September, 2018 Lo 2va September,

2018 [both days inclusive]

 

Date udeyment oi Dividend
on Dr after 3"0ctulaer ZUIE ( if declared]

 

Financial Calendar Tentative

Unaudited financial result for the quarter ending 30”" lune2018

Unaudited iinancial result for the quarter ending 30m

September,2018

Unaudited financial result for the quarter ending 31~v

December,2018

Audited financial result for the year ending 31“ March,2019

Annual general meeting tor the year ending 31“ March,2019

2nd week of August,2018

2M week or Nuvemher,2018

2nd week of Fehruary,2013

4m week (if Mdy,2018

Septermber,2019

       

5 Listing ofstock exchange BSE Ltd

a Demat ISlN number ofNSDL & CDSL 1NE926C01014

7 Stack cede on BSE Ltd 526159

a Grievance redressal lelSlOn email 11) n havl nikhiladhesives.com

  

9.High / Low share price during last financial year (month wise)

     

Month BSE (f) SENSEX

HIGH LOW HIGH LOW

Apr112017 115.90 77.00 30184 29242

May 2017 115.90 83.50 31255 29804

June 2017 16000 10000 31523 30581

July 2017 150.00 124.45 32673 31017

August 2017 131.50 107.70 32636 31128

September 2017 155.00 107.45 32524 31082

October 2017 147.90 120.00 33340 31440

November 2017 184.85 125.00 33866 32684

December 2017 23700 16260 34138 32565

January 2018 283.40 194.05 36444 33703

February 2018 29920 21100 36257 33483

March 2018 282.00 210.10 34279 32484    SZNDANNUAL REPORT 2m 7 2m   
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10) Distribution Schedule ofNumbers of Shares as on 31.03.2018

   

Shares No1 of Holders % No1 “Shares "/17

Up to 100 922 55 14 51,845 1.35

101 tn 200 273 1633 521012 1.13

201 tn 500 251 15 01 1,03,163 2.25

501 to 1000 102 6.10 86,494 1.88

1001 m 5000 71 4,25 1,59,974 3.48

5001 [0 10000 14 .84 1,02,055 2.22

10001 (0 100000 29 1.73 13,52,267 29.43

100001 to above 10 .60 26,76,490 58.25

TOTAL 1672 100.00 4,594,300 100.00

       

11) Distribufion Schedule of Numbers ofShares as on 31.03.2018

 

Category No. ofShare % afShareholding

A. Promoter's huldlng

1. Promoters

- Inman Promoters 25,01,010 54.437

. angn Pmmumn

2. Persons acungln Concert

503 TOTAL (A) 25,01,010 54 437

B. Non-Promoters holding

3.1nst1tuuunalmvestnrs

a. Mutual funds and UT] 900 0.020

0. Banks, Finanml Institutions, Insurance Companies

(Central/Sum Guvurnmcm Immunnm/Nnn Government Imnuuun)

  

c mus)

sun TOTAL (11) 900 0.020

4. Others

a Hndxes Cnrpnrare 21,17,508 17 794

1:. Indian mm: 12,60,685 27440

c. NRl's / 003': 3,350 0.073

d. Clearing Members 10,737 0 234

5. Trust: 100 0.002

SUB TOTAL (C) 2,092,390 45.543

GRAND TOTAL (mam) 4,594,300 100
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Sr.Nu Particulars

 

12 Registrars & Transfer Agents. M/s Sharex Dynamicflndia )Pvt. Ltd

Branch office :

Unit No 1 , Luthra Ind. Premises

Andherl Kurla Road, Safed Pool,

Andheri East, Mumbal 400 072

 

13 Share Transfer Systems Since your Company's shares are compulsorlly traded in the demat

segment on the BSE, bulk of the transfers take place in the

electronic term. snare transfers in physical are registered and

returned within the stipulated time, if documents are clear in all

respect. The Committee of Directors for Share transfer meets

frequently to approve transfer orshares.

 

14» Dematerlallzatlon of Shares and

Liquidity

Trading in equity shares of your Company is permitted only in

dematerialized form.

Total No. of Shares dematerlallzed up to 31.03.2018 Is 44,32,070

Le. 96.46% of the total equity share Capital ofyour Company

 

15 Issue of any GDRs, ADRS etc Your Company has not issued any ooRs, ADRs, Warrants or any

Convertible Instruments.

 

16 Plant locations PLANT 1:

Shreeji Industrial Estate,

Vadkun, College Road, Dahanu.

Dist. Palghar — 401 602.

PLANT 2:

Plot No.7,Govt Ind. Estate

Phase I, Piparla, Silvassar396230

PLANT 3:

Plot Nn.D-2/CH/49,

GIDC Estate, Dahe], Ta] 7 Vagra. Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat 7 392130.

 

17 Registered Office Address 315, The Summit Business Bay, Behind Gurunank Petrol Pump,

Opp. Clnemax, Andherl Kurla Road, Andherl (E), Mumbai r 400093,

Maharashtra,

  lE  Address for Shareholders

Correspondence

M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd.

Unit No, 1, Luthra Ind, Premises, Andherl Kurla Road, Safed Pool,

Andheri [East],Mumhai 7 41m 072   SZNDANNUAL REPORT 2m 7 2m 42
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DECLARATION

As required under Schedule V [D] ofthe SEB] [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulation,

20 15, the BoardMembers and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliances with the Code

ofConduct for the Board ofDirectors and the Senior Managementfor the year ended 31 March, 20 18.

For Nikhil Adhesives Limited

Place: Mumbai Umesh.]. Sanghavi

Date: 30" May2018 ManagingDirector

MANAGING DIRECTORAND CFO CERTIFICATION

The Board ofDirectors,

NikhilAdhesives Limited,

Mumbai.

Re: FinancialStatemean forthe year 2017 - 2018 Certificationby Managing Directorand CFO.

We the undersigned, on the basis of the review of the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the

financialyear endedMarch 3 1, 2018 and to the best ofour knowledge and belief, hereby certify that:-

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material fact or contains

statements that might be misleading.

2. These statements together present a true and fair view ofthe Company's affairs and are in compliance with

existing lndian accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

3. There are, to the best ofour knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the

year endedMarch 3 1, 2018which is fraudulent, illegal or violative ofthe Company's code ofconduct.

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls; We have evaluated the

effectiveness of the internal control systems ofthe Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the

Audit Committee those deficiencies, ofwhich we are aware, in the design or operation ofthe internal control

systems and thatwe have taken the required steps to rectify these deficiencies.

5. We further certify that:-

a. There have been no significant changes in internal control during this year;

b.There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during thisyear;

c. There have been no instances of significant fraud ofwhich we have become aware and the involvement

therein, ofmanagement or anemployee having significantrole in the Company's internal control systems.

Umesh ].Sanghavi Ami Parikh

Managing Director Chief FinancialOfficer

30‘“ May,201s 30‘“May,2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

CIN: L51900MH1986PLC041062

Nominal Capital: ?5 crores

To,

TheMembersof

NikhilAdhesives Limited

We have examined all the relevant records of Nikhil Adhesives Limited [“the Company") for the purpose of

certifying compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance under the SEBI [Lisintg Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 20 15 for the financial year ended on 3 1st March, 2018.We have obtained

all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the

purpose ofcertification.

The compliance ofconditions ofcorporate governance is the responsibility ofthe Management. Our aamination

was limited to the procedure and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance

ofthe conditions ofthe corporate governance.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability ofthe Companynor efficacy or effectivenesswith

which the management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company.

In our opinion and to the bestofour information and according to the explanations and information furnished to

us, we certify that the Company has complied with all the applicable requirements ofCorporate Governance of

the said Regulations.

ForPHD &Associates

CharteredAccountants

[Firm Registration No.1 11236W]

Paresh Vakharia

Partner

Membership No.: 38220

Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May, 20 18
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TOTHEMEMBERSOFNIKHILADHESIVESLIMITED

REPORTON THE FINANCIALS'FATEMENTS

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Nikhil Adhesives Limited [“the

Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and

Loss[including Other Comprehensive Income], the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in

equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

MANAGEMENT'SRESPONSIBILITYFORTHE IndAS FINANCIALS'I‘ATEMENTS

Z. The Company's BoardofDirectors is responsible for the matters statedin Section 134(5) ofthe Companies

Act, 2013 [“the Act") with respect to the preparation ofthese Ind AS financial statements to give a true and

fairview ofthe financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows

and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard [Ind AS]

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Rules,

2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India . This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe Ind AS financial statements that give a true and

fairviewand are free from material misstatement, whetherdue to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

4. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions ofthe Act, the accounting and auditing

standards and matters whichare required to be included in the audit report under provisions ofthe Act and

the rules made thereunder and the order issued under section 143 [11] ofthe Act.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10] of

the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and

pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material

misstatements.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment ofthe risks ofmaterial misstatementofthe lndAS financial statements, whetherdue to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the

Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ofthe accounting estimates made by

the Company's directors, aswell as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe lndAS financial statements.

7. We believe thatthe audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the lndAS financial statements.
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OPINION

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid lnd AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lnd AS and other accounting principles generally

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profits, total

comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year endedon that date.

REPORTON OTHER LEGAL ANDREGULATORYREQUIREMENTS

9. As required by 'the Companies [Auditor's Report] Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government ofIndia in

terms ofsub-section [11] ofSection 14-3 ofthe Act [hereinafter referred to as the "Order"], and on the basis

of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we consider appropriate and according to the

information and explanations given to us, we give in the AnnexureA, a statement on the matters specified in

paragraphs 3 and 4- ofthe Order.

10. As required by Section 143[3] ofthe Act, based on our audit, we reportthat:

[a] We have soughtand obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ofour knowledge

and beliefwere necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

[b] In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been keptby the Company so far as it

appearsfrom our examination ofthose books.

[c] The Balance Sheet, the Statement ofProfit and Loss including Other Comprehensive lncome, the Cash

Flow Statement and Statement ofChanges in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with

the books ofaccount.

[d] In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statementscomplywith the IndianAccounting Standards

prescribedunder Section 133 ofthe Act.

[e] On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the company, taken on

record by the Board ofDirectors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on March 3 1, 20 18 from being

appointed as a director in terms ofSection 164 [2] ofthe Act.

[f] With respect to the adequacy ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe Company

and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls, refer to our separate Report inAnnamre E.

[g] With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies [Auditand Auditors] Rules, 20 14, in our opinion and to the best ofour information and

according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impactits financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. An amountofRs. 1,13,569/-were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund by the Company in October, 20 17, is pending transfer. The managementis taking necessary steps

to comply with transfer ofthe said amountto the fund.

ForPHD &Associales

CharteredAccountants

Firm Registration No.1 11236W

PareshVakharia

Partner

Membership No.: 38220

Mumbai

30 May 2018
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Annexure A

Referred to in paragraph 9 of Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Nikliil

AdhesivesLimited on the financial statemean forthe year endedMarch 3 1, 2018:

[i] [a] The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation offixed assets[Property, Plantand Equipment].

[b] The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance

with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical

verification of the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and

explanations given to us, no material discrepancieswere noticed on suchverification.

[c] According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, we

report that the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name ofthe

Companyas at the balance sheet date, except in respectofimmovable properties that have been

taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statements, the lease agreements

are in the name ofthe Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

[ii] The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during

the yearand no material discrepancieswere noticed on such physical verification.

[iii] According to the information and aplanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,

secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in

the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ['the Act']. Accordingly,

paragraphs 3 [iii] [a], [b] and [c] ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company.

[iv] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185

of the Act. The Company has not provided any loans, or any guarantees or security to the parties

covered under Section 186 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section

186 ofthe Act in respect ofmakinginvestments.

[V] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

accepted deposits during the year and compliedwith the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of

India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,

20 13 and the rules framed there under, as applicable.

[vi] The maintenance of cost records have been specified by the Central Government under section

148[1] of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the

Company pursuant to the Companies [Cost Recordsand Audit] Rules, 2014 as amended, prescribed

by the Central Government under sub-section [1] of the Section 148 ofthe Companies Act, 2013,

and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and

maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with aview to

determine whether they are accurate or complete.

[vii] lnrespectofstatutorydues:

[a] According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,

employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax [including Goods and Service Tax], service

tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have been

generally regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the information

and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues

were outstanding as at March 31, 2018, for a period ofmore than six months from the date of

becoming payable.

[b] There are no dues ofincome tax, sales tax [including Goods and Service Tax], service tax, duty of

customs, duty ofexcise, value added tax which have not been deposited as on March 31,2018,

on account ofdisputes.
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[viii] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment ofloans or borrowings to banks. The company did not have any outstanding

dues to financial institutions or government or debenture holders.

[ix] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have

been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised. The

Company has not raised moneys by way ofinitial public offer or further public offer [including debt

instruments].

[x] To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no

fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers oremployees has been noticed or

reported duringthe year.

[xi] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial -

remuneration has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the

provisions ofSection 197 readwith Schedule Vto the Act.

[xii] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a

Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, paragraph 3[xii] of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

[xiii] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in

compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the

related parties and details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone

financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

[xiv] According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares during the year.

Accordingly, Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules have been complied

with by the company.

[xv] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to

its directors and hence provisions ofSection 192 ofthe Act are notapplicable.

[xvi] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank oflndia Act 1934. Accordingly,

paragraph 3 [xvi] ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company

ForPHD &Associates

CharteredAccountants

Firm Registration No.1 11236W

PareshVakharia

Partner

Membership No.: 38220

Mumbai

30 May 2018
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Annexure B

Referred to in paragraph 1()[f) ofour report ofeven date to the members ofNikhil Adhesives Limited on

the financial statementsforthe year endedMarch31,2()18.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

CompaniesAct, 2013 (“TheAct")

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nikhil Adhesives Limited [“the

Company") as at March 31, 2018, in conjunction with our audit of the lnd AS financial statements of the

Companyfortheyearendedonthatdahe.

Management's Responsibilityfor lntemal FinancialControls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components ofintemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial Controls

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [lCAl]. These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance ofadequate internal financial controls

that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding ofits assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable

financialinformation, as requiredundertheAct.

Auditors' Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to apress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ['the Guidance Note'] and the Standards on Auditing

deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10] of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal

financial controls, to the extent applicable to an audit oflnternal financial controls. Those Standards and the

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was

establishedandmaintainedandifsuchcontrols operatedeffectivelyinallmaterialrespects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding ofintemal financial controls

over financial reporting assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness ofintemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks ofmaterial misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning ofInternal FinancialControls OverFinancialReporting

6. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

[a] pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe Company;

[b] provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management

anddirectors ofthe Company; and

[c] provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,

use, or disposition ofthe Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

InherentLimitations of Internal Financial Controls OverFinancial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections ofany evaluation ofthe internal financial controls

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliancewith the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best ofour information and according to the aplanations given to us, the Company has,

in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such

internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 3 1, 2018, based on

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit oflntemal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute ofCharteredAccountants oflndia.

ForPHD &Associates

CharteredAccountants

Firm Registration No.1 11236W

PareshVakharia

Partner

Membership No.: 38220

Mumbai

30 May 2018
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 Date : 30th May 2018

?

. As at As at As at

Pamculm N°te March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
ASSETS

I Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 278,539,754 226,890,019 222,411,564

(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 1,531,825 8,536,237 3,904,664

(c) Intangible assets 4 - - -
(d) Financial assets

(1) Investments 5 570,731 111,520 78,056

(ii) Other non-current financial assets 6 11,924,227 3,737,177 13,112,976

(e) Other non-current assets 7 26,497,545 23,502,738 22,542,972

Total non current assets 319,064,082 262,777,691 262,050,232

11 Cunent assets

(a) Inventories 8 338,140,658 211,283,066 258,901,898

(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 9 781,488,110 644,759,517 439,269,565

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 11,821,284 13,151,295 17,865,922

(iii) Bank balances other than above 11 20,396,599 32,547,676 42,288,294

(iv) Other current financial assets 12 115,499 8,932,484 31,603,770

(c) Current tax assets (Net) 6,726,058 5,103,278 4,640,546

(d) Other current assets 13 87,997,837 121,345,338 129,391,827

Total current assets 1,246,686,045 1,037,122,654 923,961,822

TOTAL ASSETS 1,565,750,127 1,299,900,345 1,186,012,054

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

I Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 46,049,603 39,049,603 39,049,603

(b) Other equity 15 304,309,884 138,963,964 118,520,019

Total equity 350,359,487 178,013,567 157,569,622

II Liabilities

1 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 16 140,760,174 264,163,045 161,762,715

(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities 17 3,847,289 1,595,533 557,188

(b) Provisions 18 3,347,364 3,016,578 2,711,781

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 19 19,783,796 16,325,695 16,754,098

Total non-cun'ent liabilities 167,738,623 285,100,851 181,785,782

2 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 155,167,081 166,470,207 155,690,152

(ii) Trade payables 21 798,175,103 575,350,371 603,172,297
(iii) Other current financial liabilities 22 52,814,965 48,180,735 38,809,790

(b) Other current liabilities 23 28,327,973 39,671,228 45,330,155
(c) Provisions 24 1,801,467 571,301 470,181

(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 11,365,428 6,542,085 3,184,075

Total current liabilities 1,047,652,017 836,785,927 846,656,650

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,565,750,127 1,299,900,345 1,186,012,054

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For PHD 8c Associates U. I. Sanghavi T. J. Sanghavi

Chartered Accountants (Managing Director) (Executive Director)

Firm Regish'ation No. 111236W DIN : 00491220 DIN : 00519403

R. J. Sanghavi M. M. Vora

(Chairman) (Director)
Paresh Vakharia DIN : 00245637 DIN : 00245427

(Partner)

Membership No.38220
Ami Parikh Nirmal Tiwari

Place : Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary   
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
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. Year ended Year ended March 31,

Pmcula“ N°t° March 31, 2018 2017
REVENUE

Revenue From Operations 25 3,396,959,502 2,893,895,204

Other Income 26 6,891,436 757,562

Total income 3,403,850,938 2,894,652,766

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 27 1,981,574,632 1,430,853,787

Purchases of Stock—in—Trade 28 924,211,969 760,108,266
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock—in -trade and work-' -

progress 29 (28,130,676) 66,455,375

Excise duty on sale of goods 30 94,661,415 297,685,722

Employee benefits expense 31 82,943,680 64,973,807

Finance costs 32 65,323,254 66,667,242

Depreciation and amortization expense 3 17,604,461 14,875,235

Other expenses 34 213,696,106 162,490,069

Total Expenses 3,351,884,841 2,864,109,503

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 51,966,097 30,543,263

Exceptional Items 35 (8,633,879) -

Profit/(loss) before tax 43,332,218 30,543,263

Tax exgenses

Current tax 13,000,000 7,700,000

Deferred tax 19 1,768,204 2,432,782

Total Tax Expense 14,768,204 10,132,782

Profit after tax 28,564,014 20,410,481

Other Comprehensive Income

Net change in fair value of investments (40,289) 33,464

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans (377,805) -

Total Other Comprehensive Income (418,094) 33,464

Total Comprehensive Income 28,145,920 20,443,945

Earnings per share

Basic 39 7.26 5.24

Diluted 7.26 5.24

Nominal Value of Share 10.00 10.00

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For PHD &: Associates U. I. Sanghavi T. J. Sanghavi

Chartered Ancountants (Managing Director) (Executive Director)

Firm Registration No. 111236W DIN : 00491220 DIN : 00519403

R. I. Sanghavi M. M. Vora

(Chairman) (Director)

Paresh Vakharia DIN : 00245637 DIN : 00245427

(Partner)

Membership No. 38220

Ami Parikh Nirmal Tiwari

Place : Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : 30th May 2018 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2018

 

 

 

 

(A) EQUITY

?

Changes in equity for the year ended Balance as at $5::ncgaeEEIedqull‘litnyg Balance as at
March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017 March 31, 2018

the year

Equity Share Capital 39,049,603 70,00,000* 46,049,603

Changes in equity for the year ended Balance as at 58211332133113 Balance as at
March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016 111 g March 31, 2017

e year

Equity Share Capital 39,049,603 - 39,049,603     
 

* 7,00,000 equiuty shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each issued on preferential allotment basis.

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED

Muhml
WDUD ADHESIVE S|NCE1B71

 

 

 

 

 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         
 

 

(B) OTHER EQUITY

?

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehenswe
, Income

Particulars Total

Capital Securities Premium Retained Net change in fair
Reserve Reserve General Reserve Earnings value of investmenis

Balances as on April 1, 2016 400,000 12,800,000 64,287,415 41,032,604 - 118,520,019

Profit for the year - - - 20,410,481 - 20,410,481

Other comgrehensive income :
Net change in fair value of invesments - - - - 33,464 33,464

Balance as at March 31, 2017 400,000 12,800,000 64,287,415 61,443,085 33,464 138,963,964

Reserves and Surplus Ether Comprehensive

Particulars come Total

Capital Securities Premium Retained Net change in fair
Reserve Reserve General Reserve Earnings value of investments

Balances as on April 1, 2017 400,000 12,800,000 64,287,415 61,443,085 33,464 138,963,964

Profit for the year - - - 28,564,014 - 28,564,014

Other comprehensive income :

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (377,805) (377,805)

Net change in fair value of investments (40,289) (40,289)

Securities premium received during the year - 13,72,00,000** - - - 137,200,000

Balance as at March 31, 2018 400,000 150,000,000 64,287,415 89,629,294 (6,825) 304,309,884

** Share premium of Rs. 196 per share on 7,00,000 equity shares issued on preferential allottment basis.

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For PHD 8: Associates U. J. Sanghavi T. J. Sanghavi

Chartered Accountants (Managing Director) (Executive Director)

Firm Registration No. 111236W DIN : 00491220 DIN : 00519403

R. I. Sanghavi M. M. Vora

(Chairman) (Director)

Paresh Vakharia DIN : 00245637 DIN : 00245427

(Partner)
Membership No. 38220 Ami Parikh Nirmal Tiwari

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai

Date : 30th May 2018  
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CASH FLOWSTATEMENT FORTHEYEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
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, For the ear ended For the a: ended

Pm“ Mare}?31, 2018 Marchygl, 2017
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before income tax 43,332,218 30,543,263

Nnn—cash adjustment to profit before tax:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 17,604,461 14,875,235

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (60,000)

Allowance for expected credit 1655 947,163 872,444

Provision for Gratuity 1,560,952 405,917

Finance costs 65,323,254 66,667,242

Sales tax deferral 520,139 543,426

Loss on account of fire 8,633,879 -

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (377,805) -

Net exchange diflerences (4,745,276) 89,406,767 4,555,653 87,919,917

132,738,985I 118,463,180

Change in operating assets and liabilities :

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables (137,689,186) (206,257,784)

Decrease/(increase) in inventories (126,857,592) 47,618,832

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payablee 227,570,009 (32,377,579)

Decrease/(Increase) in other non-current financial assets (714,104) 36,640

Decrease/(Increase) in other current financial assets - 21,859,776

Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets 277,447 (700,224)

Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 33,347,501 8,046,489

Increase/ (decrease) in other non-current financial liability - -

Increase/ (decrease) in other current financial liabilities 1,919,298 14,514,029

Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities (11,343,255) (13,489,883) (5,658,927) (152,918,748)|

Cash generated from operations 119,249,102 (34,455,568)|

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (8,109,540) (7,665,907)

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 111,139,562 (42,121,474)

13. Cash flow from investing activities

Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (net) (65,462,038) (24,244,806)

Payment for purchase of investment (499,500) -

Term deposits with banks (placed)/ matured(Nel:) 4,691,562 (61,269,976) 18,948,528 (5,296,278)|

Net Cash Flow fram/(used in) Investing Activities (3) (61,269,976) (5,296,278)l

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) in firming activities (C)

Proceeds / (Repayment) of issue of equity share capital 144,200,000 -

Proceeds / (Repayment) of long term borrowings (Net) (124,320,166) 101,856,904

Proceeds / (Repayment) of short term borrowings (Net) (8,201,418) 5,638,079

Finance costs (62,878,012) (51,199,596) (64,791,859) 42,703,124

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,330,010) (4,714,628)I

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13,151,294 17,865,922

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11,821,284 13,151,294

Notes:

Cash and Cash Equivalents are as under:

. As at As at

Pmm‘“ 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
? ?

Cash in hand 1,001,893 945,634

Balances with banks in current accounts 10,819,391 12,205,660

11,821,284 13,151,294

2). The above Cash Flow Stabernent has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method‘ as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7— Statement of Cash Flow.

 

 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For PHD & Associates U. I. Sanghavi T. J. Sanghavi

Chartered Accountants (Managing Director) (Executive Director)

Firm Registration No. 111236W DIN : 00491220 DIN : 00519403

R. J. Sanghavi M. M. Vora

(Chairman) (Director)

Paresh Vakharia DIN : 00245637 DIN : 00245427

(Partner)

Membership No. 38220 Ami Parikh Ninnal Tiwari

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai

Date : 30th May 2018   
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DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUTNING STANDARD 101 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF INDIAN

ACCOUTNIG STANDARDS (Ind AS)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Reconciliation of balance sheet as at April 1, 2016 ?

Notes to As er revious . . As er Ind AS as

Particulars first time GaAl)’ as at EffeiziSilssmon P at

adoption April 1, 2016 April 1, 2016

ASSETS

I Non—current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 222,411,564 222,411,564

(b) Capital work-in-progress 3,904,664 3,904,664

(c) Intangible assets - -

(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments 8 36,000 42,056 78,056

(ii) Other non—current financial assets 13,112,976 13,112,976

(e) Other non—current assets 22,542,972 22,542,972

Total non current assets 262,008,176 42,056 262,050,232

11 Current assets

(a) Inventories 258,901,898 258,901,898

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 2 441,780,764 (2,511,199) 439,269,565

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 17,865,922 17,865,922

(iii) Bank balances other than above 42,288,294 42,288,294

(iv) Other current financial assets 31,603,770 31,603,770

(c) Current tax assets (Net) 4,640,546 4,640,546

(d) Other current assets 129,391,827 129,391,827

Total Current Assets 926,473,021 (2,511,199) 923,961,822

TOTAL ASSETS 1,188,481,197 (2,469,143) 1,186,012,054

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

I Equity

(a) Equity share capital 39,049,603 39,049,603

(b) Other equity 120,158,962 (1,638,943) 118,520,019

Total equity 159,208,565 (1,638,943) 157,569,622

11 Liabilities

1 Non—current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 161,762,715 161,762,715

(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities 557,188 557,188

(b) Provisions 2,711,781 2,711,781

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 10 17,584,298 (830,200) 16,754,098

Total non—current liabilities 182,615,982 (830,200) 181,785,782

2 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 155,690,152 155,690,152

(ii) Trade payables 603,172,297 603,172,297

(iii) Other current financial liabilities 38,809,790 38,809,790

(b) Other current liabilities 45,330,155 45,330,155

(c) Provisions 470,181 470,181

((1) Current tax liabilities (Net) 3,184,075 3,184,075

Total current liabilities 846,656,650 - 846,656,650

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,188,481,197 (2,469,143) 1,186,012,054       
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Reconciliation of balance sheet as at March 31, 2017 ?

Particulars f1]:21:11:; Asclfggfilvfius Effect of transition to As per Ind AS as at

adoption March 31' 2017 Ind AS March 31, 2017

ASSETS

I Non—current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 26,890,019 226,890,019

(b) Capital work-in—progress 8,536,237 8,536,237

((1) Intangible assets - -

((1) Financial assets

(i) Investments 8 36,000 75,520 111,520

(ii) Other non-current financial assets 3,737,177 3,737,177

(e) Other non—current assets 23,502,738 23,502,738

Total non current assets 262,702,171 75,520 262,777,691

II Current assets

(a) Inventories 211,283,066 211,283,066

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 2 648,143,160 (3,383,643) 644,759,517

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 13,151,295 13,151,295

(iii) Bank balances other than above 32,547,676 32,547,676

(iv) Other current financial assets 8,932,484 8,932,484

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 5,103,278 5,103,278

(d) Other current assets 121,345,338 121,345,338

Total current assets 1,040,506,297 (3,383,643) 1,037,122,654

TOTAL ASSETS 1,303,208,468 (3,308,123) 1,299,900,345

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

I Equity

(a) Equity share capital 39,049,603 39,049,603

(b) Other equity 140,524,925 (1,560,961) 138,963,964

Total equity 179,574,528 (1,560,961) 178,013,567

II Liabilities

1 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 7 265,217,187 (1,054,142) 264,163,045

(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities 1,595,533 1,595,533

(b) Provisions 3,016,578 3,016,578

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 10 17,095,825 (770,130) 16,325,695

Total Non—current liabilities 286,925,123 (1,824,272) 285,100,851

2 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 166,470,207 166,470,207

(ii) Trade payables 4 575,273,261 77,110 575,350,371

(iii) Other current financial liabilities 48,180,735 48,180,735

(b) Other current liabilities 39,671,228 39,671,228

(c) Provisions 571,301 571,301

(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 6,542,085 6,542,085

Total current liabilities 836,708,817 77,110 836,785,927

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,303,208,468 (3,308,123) 1,299,900,345       
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Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 ?

As per previous As per Ind AS

Particulars £12111; GAAP Effect of transition for the year

ado tion for the year ended to Ind AS ended

P March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017

REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 5 2,651,176,437 242,718,767 2,893,895,204

Other Income 757,562 - 757,562

Total income 2,651,933,999 242,718,767 2,894,652,766

EXPENDITURE

Cost of materials consumed 1,457,330,187 - 1,457,330,187

Purchases of stock—in-trade 760,108,266 - 760,108,266

Changes in inventorles of finished goods, stock—m - 39,978,975 39,978,975

trade and work—m—progress -

Excise duty on sale of goods 11 297,685,722 297,685,722

Employee benefits expense 64,973,807 - 64,973,807

Finance costs 69,466,660 (2,799,418) 66,667,242
Depreciation and amortization expense 14,875,235 - 14,875,235

Other expenses 5 214,762,194 (52,272,125) 162,490,069
Total Expenses 2,621,495,324 242,614,179 2,864,109,503

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 30,438,675 104,588 30,543,263

Exceptional Items - -

Profit/(loss) before tax 30,438,675 104,588 30,543,263
Tax expenses

Current tax 7,700,000 - 7,700,000

Deferred tax 10 2,372,712 60,070 2,432,782

Profit/(loss) after tax 20,365,963 44,518 20,410,481

Other Comprehensive Income

Net change in fair value of investments - 33,464

Profit for the year 20,365,963 77,982 20,443,945      
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DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY IND AS 101 - FIRST TIME ADOPTION.

1. Property Plant and Equipment:

The Company has availed the exemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for all of its property,

plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date 0ftransiti0n t0 Ind AS, measured as per the

Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date 0ftransiti0n(April1,2016).

2. Expected Credit Loss:

Under the Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on expected credit loss (ECL) model. Applying this

model, the Company impaired its trade receivables by ? 2 5,1 1,199 as on the transition date which has been recognised in

retained earnings. The impairment of? 8,72,444 for the year ended March 31, 2017 has been recognised in the Trade

Receivables and in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

3. Lease hold land:
Under Previous GAAP, leasehold land was disclosed as part of property, plant & equipment and amortised by way of

depreciation. Under Ind AS, the leasehold land is treated as an operating lease and consequently the unamortised portion

ofupfront payment for the leasehold land has been shown under the head' Other non-current assets'.

4. Forward Contracts:

Under Previous GAAP, the difference between spot rate and forward rate is amortised over the tenure of the forward

contract and premium paid on options were expensed out. Under Ind AS, forward/option contract is required to be

accounted at fair value. Accordingly, the company has provided for loss of ? 77,1 10 in the Statement ofProfit and Loss for

the year ended March 3 1,2017.

5. Discount

Cash discounts and Trade discounts have been reduced from revenue as per Ind AS, amounting to ? 17,45,276 &

? 5,32,21,679 respectively for the year ended March 3 1, 2017, and corresponding expenses have been reduced. This does

not affect profit or equity.

6. Security Deposit Paid:

Under Previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits( that are refundable on completion of the lease term) are

recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value.

Accordingly, the company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and

transactionvalue 0fthe security deposit has been recognised as prepaid rent.

7. Borrowings:

Under Previous GAAP, transaction cost on borrowings were charged offto expense during availment Ofloan. Under Ind AS,

the transaction cost is to be required to be deducted from the carrying amount 0fthe borrowings 0n the initial recognition.

These costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of the interest

expense by applying the Effective Interest Rate method.

8. Investments:

Under Previous GAAP, investment made in equity instruments and mutual funds were classified as long term investments

and carried at cost. Under Ind AS these instruments are required to be measured at fair value. Equity instruments are fair

valued through other comprehensive income.

9. OtherComprehensive Income:

Under Previous GAAP, the Company has not presented Other Comprehensive Income(OCI) separately. Hence, the

Statement of Profit and Loss under previous GAAP has been reconciled with statement of profit and loss and other

comprehensiveincome asperlndAS.

10. DeferredTax:
Previous GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences

between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes

using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or

liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. As per Ind AS, MAT credit entitlement is to be reduced from the deferred tax

liabilities, which under the previous GAAP was shown as advances receivable.

11. Excise duty:

Under the previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented net of excise duty under the head revenue from

operations, whereas under Ind AS, revenue from sale ofproducts includes excise duty and the corresponding excise duty

expense is presented separately on the face of the statement ofprofit and loss. However, the change does not affect total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Corporate Information

Nikhil Adhesives Ltd("the Company") a Public Limited Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, is listed on

the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company is mainly engaged in the business of manufacturing various types of polymer

emulsions and adhesives that are used for different applications. The Company has three manufacturing units located at

Dahanu (Maharashtra), Silvassa (Dadra Nagar Haveli) and at Dahej (Gujarat). The company is also engaged in the business

oftrading in chemicals.

1. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Statement ofCompliance

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted with effect from

April 1, 2016, Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules 2015 and complied with the requirement under Para 3 ofInd AS 101.These financial statements are the

first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2016.

1.2 Basis ofPreparation

1.2.1 The financial statements of the Company are consistently prepared and presented under historical cost convention

on an accrual basis in accordance with Ind AS except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair

values. 1.2.2 The Company’s functional currency and presentation currency is Indian Rupees (INR)1.2.3 Classification of

Assets and Liabilities into Current and Non-Current The Company presents its assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet

based on current/ non-current classification.An asset is treated as current when it is:

3) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

b) held primarily forthe purpose oftrading;

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reportingperiod; ord) cash or cash equivalent unless

restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.All

other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is treated as current when :

a) it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

b) itisheldprimarilyforthe purpose oftrading;

c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; ord) there is no unconditional right to defer

the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified

as noncurrent.

1.3 Use ofjudgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements required management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying

disclosures, and the disclosures of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result

in outcomes that require a material adjustment in the future periods in the carrying amount ofassets or liabilities affected.

The Company's accounting policies, management has made judgements in respect of evaluation of recoverability of

deferred tax assets, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources ofestimation uncertainty at the end of

the reporting period that mayhave a significant risk ofcausing a material adj ustment to the carrying amounts ofassets and

liabilities within:

a) Useful life of property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets: The Company has estimated useful life of the

Property Plant and Equipment as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. However the actual useful life for

individual equipments could turn out to be different, there could be technology changes, breakdown, unexpected failure

leading to impairment or complete discard. Alternately the equipment may continue to provide useful service well beyond

the useful life assumed.

b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active market, the fair value is measured using valuation techniques

including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where

possible, but where this is not possible, a degree ofjudgement is required in establishing fair values.

c) Impairment of financial and non-flnancial assets: The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on

assumptions about risk ofdefault and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and

selecting the input for the impairment calculations, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions,

technology, economic developments as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period._
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(1) Taxes:

Taxes have been paid / provided, exemptions availed, allowances considered etc. are based on the extant laws

and the Company's interpretation ofthe same based on the legal advice received wherever required. These could

differ in the View taken by the authorities, clarifications issued subsequently by the government and courts,

amendments to statutes by the government etc.

e| Defined benefit plans:

The cost of defined benefit plans and other post —employment benefits plans and the present value of such

obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various

assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.

f | Provisions:

The Company makes provision for gratuity based on report received from the independent actuary. These

valuation reports use complex valuation models using not only the inputs provided by the Company but also

various other economic variables. Considerable judgement is involved in the process.

g) Contingencies:

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result ofpast event and it is probable

that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation in respect ofwhich a reliable estimate can be

made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required

to settle the present obligations at the end of the reporting period. However the actual liability could be

considerably different.

1.4- Property, Plant and Equipment:

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of

recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The

cost oftangible assets comprises of its purchase price, borrowing cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing

the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by

management, initial estimation ofany decommissioning obligations and finance cost.

Stores and spares which meet the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment and satisfy recognition criteria of

Ind AS 16 are capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipment. An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any

significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition ofthe asset is included in the Statement ofProfit

and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost ofProperty, Plant and Equipment which are not ready for their intended

use.

The residual values and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end,

and changes, ifany, are accounted prospectively.

Depreciation on the Property, Plant and Equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in

Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 using straight line method. Property, Plant and Equipment which are

added / disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the month of

addition / deletion.

In line with the provisions of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, the Company depreciates significant

components of the main asset (which have different useful lives as compared to the main asset] based on the

individual useful life of those components. Useful life for such components has been assessed based on the

historical experience and internal technical inputs.

1.5 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognised only if they are separately identifiable and the Company expects to receive

future economic benefits arising out ofthem. Intangible Assets are stated at cost ofacquisition net ofrecoverable

taxes less accumulated amortisation/ depletion and impairment loss, it any. The cost comprises purchase price,

borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended

use.
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis over their useful economic life and assessed

for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation

period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each year end.

The amortised expense on intangible assets with finite lives and impairment loss is recognised in the Statement

ofProfit and Loss. '[The useful lives ofintangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Gains or losses

arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the

asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually. The

assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be

supportable. If not the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. The

impairment loss on intangible assets with indefinite life is recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

1.6 Impairment ofnon — financial assets

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired

and also whether there is an indication ofreversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous periods. Ifany

indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company determines the

recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's [CGU] fair value less costs of

disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not

generate cash inflows that are largely independent ofthose from other assets or groups ofassets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired

and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no

such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

1.7 Inventories

Inventories are valued as under:

Raw materials, packing material, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However,

materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the

finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above manufacturing cost.

Stock in process is valued atlower ofcost and net realisable value.

Finished goods [including in transit] are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost for this

purpose includes direct materials, direct labour utilities, other variable direct costs and manufacturing

overheads, based on the normal operating capacity and depreciation.

1.8 Cash and cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with

an original maturity ofthree months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in value.

For the purpose ofstatement ofcashflows, cash and cash equivalents consist ofcash and short-term deposits as

defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered as an integral part of the Company's

cash management.

Bank Balances other than above

Dividend escrow account balances, deposits with banks as margin money for guarantees issued by the banks,

deposits kept as security deposits for statutory authorities are accounted as bank balances other than Cash and

Cash equivalents.
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Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of

transactions ofa non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals ofpast or future operating cash receipts or payments

and item ofincome or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows . The cash flows from operating,

investing and financing activities ofthe Company are segregated.

1.9 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or

equity instrument ofanother entity.

A. Financial Assets:

| I | Classification:

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other

comprehensive income, or fair value through profit and loss on the basis ofits business model for managing the

financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics ofthe financial asset.

[ii] Initial recognition and measurement:

A11 financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recognised at fair

value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

 

|iii| Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method [EIR], if these

financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. The losses arising from the impairment are

recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

|iV| Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are

held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling

financial assets and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal outstanding.

|V| Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss :

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair

value movements are recognised in profit and loss.

|Vi| Derecognition of financial assets :

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

B. Impairment of Financial Assets:

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss [ECL] model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment

Ioss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to

track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment Ioss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each

reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

C. Financial Liabilities

|I| Classification :

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for

financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are

liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Iii] Initial recognition and measurement :

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net

of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and

borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.
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{iii} Subsequent measurement :
All financial liabilities are re-measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss and include financial

liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through

statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the

purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

{iv} Loans and borrowings :
Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest

Rate [EIR] method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cost in

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

|V| Derecognition of financial liabilities :

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or

modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

[Vi] Derivative financial instruments :

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and options to hedge

its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the

date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. The gain

or loss in the fair values is taken to Statement of Profit and Loss at the end of every financial year. Profit or

loss on cancellations / renewals offorward contracts and options are recognised as income or expense ofthe

financial year.
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1.10 Fairvalue measurement

The Company measures certain financial assets and financial liabilities including derivatives and defined benefit plans at

fairvalue.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes

place either:

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

(b) In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value ofan asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that marketparticipants would use when pricing

the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

1.11 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily

takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized. All other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

1.12 Provisions, Contingent liabilities, ContingentAssets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an

outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation in respect ofwhich a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions

are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present

obligations at the end ofthe reporting period. Ifthe effect ofthe time value ofmoney is material, provisions are discounted

using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the

changes in the provision due to the passage oftime are recognised as a finance cost. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in

the case of :

(a) a present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required

to settle the obligation;

(b) a present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;

(c) a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent

assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

1.13 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund, and Compensated Leave.

[ I l Provident Fund :

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are

accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

[ii] Gratuity:

The employees of the Company are eligible for gratuity in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, and is a Defined

Employee Benefit. The above benefit is not funded but provision is made in the accounts. The Company's net obligation in

respect of the gratuity benefit is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in

return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The

present value of the obligation under such benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected

Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of service that give rise to additional unit of employee benefit

entitlement and measures each unit separately to built up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at presentvalues

ofestimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the marketyields

on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the

Statement ofProfit and Loss.

[iii l Compensated Leave:

Unutilised leave ofstafflapses as at the year end and is not encashable. Accordingly, no provision is made for compensated

absences.

1.14 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is fairly certain that it will

be realised.

Sale ofGoods:
Sales are accounted on passing of risks, rewards and control of ownership attached to the goods to external customers.

Gross sales measured at the fairvalue ofthe consideration received or receivable include excise duty and are net ofreturns

and discounts.
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Dividend Income:
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive is established and there is a reasonable certainty ofits collection.

Contract Revenue:

Revenue from goods manufactured under contractual arrangement is recognised on completion of the contractual

perfoermance.

Interest Income :

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount ofa

financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering

all the contractual terms of the financial instruments (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but

does not consider the expected creditloss.

Insurance compensation:

Compensation in respect ofinsurance claims is recognised on acceptance basis or when there is reasonable certainty that

the ultimate collection will be made.

Others :
Income in respect of other claims and commissions are measured at fair value and recognised when there is reasonable

certainty that the ultimate collection will be made.

1.15 Taxes on Income
Income tax expenses comprise current tax expenses and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liabilities during the

year. Current and Deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity respectively.

Current Tax:

The Company provides for current tax based on the provisions ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961 applicable to the Company.

Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for

deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amount.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and

any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has

become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is

realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the

reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

1.16 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit after tax or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. In case there are any

dilutive securities during the period presented, the impact of the same is given to arrive at diluted earnings per share.

1.17 Segment Reporting

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of nature ofproducts and same are accordingly evaluated by the

Manager and Board of Directors. Company’s operating segments are Manufacturing of Adhesives & Emulsions and

Trading in Chemicals & Others. Company accordingly reports its financials under two segments i.e. Manufacturing of

Adhesives & Emulsions and Trading in Chemicals & Others.
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1.18 Leases

Determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the

inception date, whether the arrangement qualifies as lease is dependent on the use of a specific asset(s) or where the

arrangement conveys right to use the asset, even ifthat right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the rights and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are

classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the Statement of

Profit and Loss on a straightline basis.

1.19 Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. All

monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. All

exchange differences arising on translation of monetary items are dealt within the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.20 First-time adoption - mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions

The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as ofthe transition date which is lstApril 2016, by

(a) recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS;

(b) not recognising items ofassets or liabilities which are not permitted by lnd AS;

(c) reclassifying items from Previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS; and

(d) applying Ind AS in measurement ofrecognised assets and liabilities.

However, this principle is subject to certain exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as

detailedbelow:

(a) Derecognition offinancial assets and liabilities

The Company has applied the derecognition requirements offinancial assets and liabilities prospectively for transactions

occurring on or after April 1, 20 16 (date oftransition).

(b) Impairment offinancial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS

101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the

credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the

transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the

date of transition to Ind AS, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as

permittedbylndAS 101.

(c) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investmentproperty and intangible assets.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment, investment property and

intangible assets recognised as oprril 1, 2016 measured as per Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed

cost as ofthe aforesaid transition date.
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Note 8 : Inventories
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. As at As at As at

Pamculm March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw materials and components 238,154,548 143,666,098 125,576,803

Packing materials 11,943,673 8,075,567 7,050,518

Finished goods 65,869,374 37,344,723 39,319,310

Trading goods 21,461,255 21,901,781 86,645,227

Fuels 711,808 294,897 310,040

Total 338,140,658 211,283,066 258,901,898

Note 9 : Trade receivables

?

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Unsecured, considered good :

Trade 1:ecenlables outstandmg for a perxod 6,441,868 4,298,286 3,816,967

exceeding 51x months from due date

Other trade receivables 779,377,047 643,844,874 437,963,797

785,818,915 648,143,160 441,780,764

Less : Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 4,330,805 3,383,643 2,511,199

Total 781,488,110 644,759,517 439,269,565

, As at As at As at

Pamculm March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Trade receivables considered for ECL 785,818,915 648,143,160 441,780,764

Ageing

Not due 428,850,874 301,767,495 190,442,353

30-90 days 302,433,320 289,139,442 205,995,911

90—180 days 48,092,853 52,937,937 41,525,533

More than 180 days 6,441,868 4,298,286 3,816,967

, As at As at

Pm‘dum March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Movement in expected credit loss allowance

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,383,643 2,511,199

Movement in expected credit loss allowance 947,162 872,444

Balance at the end of the year 4,330,805 3,383,643    
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Note 10 : Cash 8: cash equivalent
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?

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Balances with banks in current accounts 10,819,391 12,205,660 16,288,684

Cash on hand 1,001,893 945,635 1,577,238

Total 11,821,284 13,151,295 17,865,922

Note 11 : Other balances with banks

?

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Term deposits of maturity period of more than

three months but less than one year from the 19,907,814 32,071,522 41,633,178

balance sheet date

(Of the above, term deposits Rs. 1,30,11,822 are

pledged with banks against loans, letter of credit

facilities and bank guarantees.)

In earmarked accounts :

-Unpaid dividend accounts 400,866 401,666 476,016

-Balances held as margin money 87,919 74,488 179,100

Total 20,396,599 32,547,676 42,288,294

Note 12 : Other current financial assets

?

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Claims receivable - 8,633,879 30,493,655

Interest accrued on term deposits 115,499 298,605 1,110,115

Total 115,499 8,932,484 31,603,770

Note 13 : Other current assets

?

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Advances to suppliers 14,136,513 9,538,116 9,803,189

Central excise / GST balances 69,811,454 100,292,505 105,990,376

Prepaid expenses 2,472,229 6,792,387 7,267,032

Other advances recoverable in cash or in kind 1,577,641 4,722,330 6,331,230

Total 87,997,837 121,345,338 129,391,827    
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. 1 As at As at As at
Pam March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Secured :
From Banks

- Vehicle finance 2,150,378 905,629 312,519

From Others
- Term loans 94,721,035 116,951,694 -

96,871,413 117,857,323 312,519

Unsecured :
Deferred payment liabilities
Sales Tax Deferral 6,048,761 5,528,622 4,985,196

Deposits
From Shareholders 37,840,000 18,195,000 16,115,000

Loan from Related Party - 122,582,100 140,350,000
43,888,761 146,305,722 161,450,196

Total 140,760,174 264,163,045 161,762,715

(3) Details of security and henna of repayment for secured long term borrowmgs: ?

P . Security and terms of repayment as at March As at As at As at
31, 2018 March 31, 2018 Much 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Term loans from others:

Aditya Birla Finance Ltd

Term Loans I (a) Secured against first charge on present and
future movable and immovable fixed assets of 76,652,551 94,183,958 -

the plant at Dahej

(b) Repayable'in 84 monthly histaflnwnts, last
“ being due1n Aug 2023.

(c) Rate of Interest19 11.75%.

Term Loans 11 (a) Secured against fixst charge on present and
future movable and immovable fixed assets of 18,068,484 22,767,736 _
the plant at Dahej

(b) Repayable'in 84 monthly histallnwnts, last
“ being dueIn April 2024.

(c) Rate of Interest'15 11.75%.
Total 94,721,035 116,951,694 —

Vehicle Finance
HDFC Bank

(a) Secured against hypathecation of the vehicle
Vehicle 1 financed. 451385 76““ '

(b) Repayable'm 33 monthly histallmenls, last
" being duein December 2019.

(1:) Rate of Interest‘19 9.06%.

(a) Secured against hypothecation of the vehicle 141,463 312,519

Vehicle II financed -

(b) Repayable'm 21 monthly installments, last
“ being dueIn December 2018.

(c) Rate of Interest'15 8.83%.
ICICI Bank

(a) Secured against hypothecation of the vehicle 1 698 93

Vehicle I {Wd' I I - -

(b) Repayable'In 33 monthly installnwnls, last
“ being duem December 2019.

(c) R666 64 Interest'15 9.06%.

Total 2,150,378 905,629 312,519
(b) Secured long term borrowings of ? 95,542,806/- (Previous year ? 118,005,836/-) are personally guaranteed by some of the directors of the Company

(c) Terms of repayment far the unsecured long berm borrowings: ?

As at As at As at

11315;qu Tm“ "f "Paymm March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Sales Tax Deferral Sales tax collected under Package scheme of
Incentives are payable1n 5 to 6 yearly
:- “ after 10 to 12 years from the year of 6,048,761 5,528,622 4,985,196
tax collection.

From Share holders Deposits repayable as per maturity terms not
exceeding 3 years 37349000 18,195,000 16,115,000

Loan from Related Party Repayable on demand - 122,582,100 140,350,000

Tutal 43,888,761 146,305,722 161,450,196   
(11) Current maturities of term loans,vehicle finance from bank ? 2.83,05,438/- (Previous Year ? 2,56,00,886/-) is disclosed under 'Other Current Liabilities‘ (Refer

NoteZZ)
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Note 17 : Other non-current financial libailities
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. As at As at As at

Pamculm March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Interest accrued but not due on Public Deposits 3,847,289 1,595,533 557,188

Total 3,847,289 1,595,533 557,188

Note 18 : Provisions - non-current

?

. As at As at As at

Pamela“ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Provision for gratuity 3,347,364 3,016,578 2,711,781

Total 3,347,364 3,016,578 2,711,781

Note 19 : Deferred tax liability (Net)

Movement in deferred tax balances during the financial year ended March 31, 2018 ?

Deferred Tax Defig‘: Tax Deferred Tax

Components of Deferred Tax liabilities/(assets) (reversii ) liabilities] assets as

as on April 1, 2017 . g on March 31, 2018
durlng the year

Deferred tax liabilities] (assets)

Difference between deferred sales tax liability under the
Package Scheme of Incentives and dicounted present 1,308,536 (171,958) 1,136,578

value of the liability

Depreciation on fixed assets 24,938,173 2,846,166 27,784,339

Borrowing cost amortised in books of account 348,500 (76,821) 271,679
Emplyee benefit-Gratuity (1,165,108) (516,051) (1,681,159)

Expected Credit Loss (1,118,630) (313,132) (1,431,762)

24,311,471 1,768,204 26,079,675

MAT credit entitlement (7,985,776) (6,295,879)

|Net deferred tax liabilities / (assets) 16,325,695 19,783,796

Movement in deferred tax balances during the financial year ended March 31, 2017 ?

Deferred Tax D?fFrre/d Tax Deferred Tax

Components of Deferred Tax Balance as on msm’? d , Balance as on

April 1, 2016 reversmg “““g March 31, 2017
the year

Deferred Tax Liabilities] (Assets)

Difference between deferred sales tax liability under the

Package Scheme of Incentives and dicounted present 1,488,193 (179,657) 1,308,536

value of the liability

Depreciation on fixed assets 22,251,608 2,686,565 24,938,173

Borrowing cost amortised in books of account - 348,500 348,500

Emplyees benefit—Gratuity (1,030,912) (134,196) (1,165,108)

Expected Credit Loss (830,200) (288,430) (1,118,630)

21,878,689 2,432,782 24,311,471

MAT credit entitlement (5,124,591) (7,985,776)

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets) 16,754,098 16,325,695    
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Note 20 : Current financial borrowings ?

. As at As at As at
Pmmlm March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Secured (Refer (a) and (b) below) :

Loans repayable on demand
Cash Credit from Banks 155,167,081 166,470,207 155,690,152

Total 155,167,081 166,470,207 155,690,152

(a) Particulars of security for the secured short—term borrowings: ?

Particulars Nature of security As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Loans repayable on demand

Cash Credit from Banks

Bank of India The facilities from the 88,343,503 136,566,006 124,541,563

Standard Chartered Bank consortium banks viz.Bank of 7,020,393 6,216,329 21,987,388

Yes Bank India and Standard Gmrtered 59,803,185 23,687,872 9,161,201
Bank are secured against

hypothecation of stock of raw

8: packing materials, finished

goods, book debts and plant

8: machineries of the company

on pari passu basis. Further

they are collaterally secured

against equitable mortgage of

Total ' ‘ ‘ ' H ' 155,167,081 166,470,207 155,690,152   
(b) Secured short term borrowings of ‘ 15,51,67,081/- (Previous year ‘ 16,64,70,207/-) are personally guaranteed by some of the promoter directors and

others and are collaterally secured against equitable mortgage of certain residential flats of the promoter directors in favour of the said banks on pari passu

basis.

 

 

     
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note 21 : Trade payables ?

. As at As at As at
Pmmlm March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro 81; Small Enterprises - - -

ii) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors Other than Micro 8: Small Enterprises 798,175,103 575,350,371 603,172,297

Total 798,175,103 575,350,371 603,172,297

Note 22 : Other current financial liabilities

?

. As at As at As at

Puma“ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Current maturities of Long term debt (Refer Note 16) 28,305,438 25,600,886 30,742,862

Interest accrued but not due on Deposits 487,702 477,322 478,430

Unclaimed dividends 400,866 401,666 476,016

Secun'ty deposits 4,185,853 1,778,699 1,339,060

Other payables 19,435,106 19,922,162 5,773,422

Total 52,814,965 48,180,735 38,809,790

Note 23 : Other cunent liabilities ?

. As at As at As at
Pmmla's March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Advances from customers 1,979,974 1,801,107 11,802,184

Statutory dues 1,644,473 6,331,777 4,337,678

Liabilities for expenses 24,703,526 31,538,344 29,190,293

Total 28,327,973 39,671,228 45,330,155

Note 24 : Current provisions ?

. As at As at As at

Puma“ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Provision for Employee Benefits

- Gratuity 1,801,467 571,301 470,181

Total 1,801,467 571,301 470,181    
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. As at As at

Pmculars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Note 25 : Revenue from operation

Sale of products :

(a) Manufactured goods

— Adhesives and Emulsions 2,425,126,686 2,043,899,042

(b) Traded goods

- Chemicals 937,076,972 831,754,977

3,362,203,658 2,875,654,019

Other operating revenues :

(a) Labour charges income 18,612,026 10,204,464

(b) Foreign currency translation gains 16,143,818 8,036,721

34,755,844 18,241,185

Total 3,396,959,502 2,893,895,204

Note 26 : Other income

(a) Sundry balances written back 22,109 -

(b) Miscellaneous income 6,696,727 357,562

(c) Scrap sales 172,600 400,000

6,891,436 757,562

Note 27: Cost of materials consumed

Raw materials consumed

Opening stock 143,666,098 125,576,803

Add : Purchases 1,940,310,251 1,326,361,033

2,083,976,349 1,451,937,836

Less : Closing stock 238,154,548 143,666,098

Sub-total (a) 1,845,821,801 1,308,271,738

Packing materials consumed

Opening stock 8,075,567 7,050,518

Add : Purchases 139,620,937 123,607,098

147,696,504 130,657,616

Less : Closing stock 11,943,673 8,075,567

Sub—total (b) 135,752,831 122,582,049

Total (a)+(b) 1,981,574,632 1,430,853,787

Note 28 : Puchases of traded goods

Butyl Acetate Monomer 384,776,869 274,568,433

Vinyl Acetate Monomer 308,385,832 300,951,411

Other chemicals 231,049,268 184,588,422

Total 924,211,969 760,108,266
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. As at As at

Pamculars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Note 29 : Changes in invetories of finished goods and stock-in-

trade

Opening Stock

(a) Finished goods

- Adhesives 8: Emulsions 37,344,724 39,319,310

(b) Stock—in—trade

- Chemicals 21,901,781 86,645,227

(a) 59,246,505 125,964,537

Less : Closing Stock

(3) Finished goods

- Adhesives 8: Emulsions 65,869,374 37,344,724

(b) Stock—in—trade

- Chemicals 21,461,255 21,901,781

(b) 87,330,629 59,246,505

Changes in inventories (c)=(a)-(b) (28,084,124) 66,718,032

Increase/ (decrease) in excise duty on finished goods (d) (46,552) (262,657)

Total (c)+(d) (28,130,676) 66,455,375

Note 30: Excise duty on sale of goods

Excise duty 94,661,415 297,685,722

(For the year ended March 31, 2018, due to introducation of GST

regime from July 1, 2017, the excise duty is only for the period of

April to June 2017)

Total 94,661,415 297,685,722

Note 31 : Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages 74,718,855 59,084,314

Contributions to provident and other funds 5,972,322 4,065,237

Staff welfare expenses 2,252,503 1,824,256

Total 82,943,680 64,973,807

Note 32 : Finance Cost

Interest expense 36,764,873 36,617,242

Other borrowing costs 30,593,398 33,077,422

67,358,271 69,694,664

Less :

Interest received (Gross) 2,035,017 3,027,422

Total 65,323,254 66,667,242

Note 33 : Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation on fixed assets 17,443,885 14,714,659

Amortisation on leasehold land 160,576 160,576

17,604,461 14,875,235    
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Note 34 : Other expenses

Stores and spares consumed 6,214,134 4,131,743

Power and fuel 25,927,591 22,053,346

Labour charges 20,773,685 12,321,782

Rent 7,878,539 4,275,540

Repairs and maintenance :

Plant 8: machinery 2,826,570 2,435,330

Building 65,368 110,757

Others 481,503 447,524

Printing and stationery 763,031 701,645

Insurance 2,602,947 2,331,840

Loss on insurance claim - 1,133,256

Storage charges expenses (Net) 10,537,099 12,159,322

Telephone expenses 2,500,968 2,384,815

Legal and stamping Charges - -

Travelling and conveyance expenses 17,207,233 12,767,030

Legal and professional charges 6,011,570 2,965,864

Sales promotion expenses 12,942,978 10,023,460

Transporation and Octroi charges 71,493,341 49,856,870

Foreign exchange Loss 292,373 77,110

Allowance for expected credit loss 947,162 872,444

Brokerage and Commission 5,491,044 8,198,511

Bad debts 9,121,008 6,784,486

Directors sitting fees 203,450 60,000

Miscellaneous expenses 9,414,512 6,397,394

Total 213,696,106 162,490,069

Note 35 : Exceptional items

Loss on insurance Claim 8,633,879 -

Total 8,633,879 —    

32'"J ANNUAL REPORT 2017 — 2018 79



Note 36 : CIF value of imports

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED

Muhml
WDUD ADHESIVE S|NCE1971

 

 

     
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

       
 

 

     
 

 

?

For the year
Particulars Enfiggr;a?d ended

’ March 31, 2017

Materials (for manufactured/ traded goods) 1,397,017,590 992,784,141

Note 37 : Value of consumption of imported and indigenous items

. For the year ended For the year ended
Pmmlm March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

? % ? %
Raw materials :

Imported 1,332,091,811 72 1,126,114,691 86

Indigenous 513,729,990 28 182,157,047 14

Total 1,845,821,801 100 1,308,271,738 100

Spare parts and components :

Indigenous 6,214,134 100 4,131,743 100

Note 38 : Earnings in foreign currency

?

For the year ended For the year
Particulars March 31, 2018 ended

March 31, 2017

FOB value of exports 315,658,220 74,291,136

Total 315,658,220 74,291,136

Note 39 : Earnings per share

?

For the year ended For the year
Particulars March 31, 2018 ended

March 31, 2017

Nominal Value of Equity shares 10 10

Net profit after tax available to the Equity shareholders 28,564,014 20,410,481

Weighted average number of Equity shares 3,934,574 3,894,300

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 7.26 5.24    
Note 40 : Details of leasing arrangements

Operating Lease: As a Lessee

The company has entered into cancellable operating leases. These lease arrangements are normally renewable on expiry. The lease

arrangement can be cancelled either at the option of lessor giving notice for the period ranging from two months to three months or lessee

giving two months notice.

Lease payments amounting to ? 77,86,136/-(Previous year ? 42,75,540/ -) are included in rental expenditure in the Statement of Profit and

Loss during the current year.
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Note 41 : Employee benefit plans

(a) Defined contribution plans:
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The amount recognised as expense in respect of Defined Contribution Plans (Contribution to Provident Fund) aggregate to

?43,05,146 /- (Previous year 63,42,856 /-).

(b) Retirement benefit - Gratuity:

The employees of the Company are eligible for gratuity in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, and is a Defined Employee

Benefit. The above benefit is not funded but provision is made in the accounts for accrued gratuity under Projected Unit Credit Method

of acturial valuation.

The following table summaries the components of the employee benefit expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the

amount recognised in the Balance sheet for the gratuity provision made under actuarial method.

Statement of Profit and Loss

Net employee benefit expenses recognised in Employee Benefit Expenses (Note No 31)
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_ For the year ended For the year ended

Parm'flm March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Components of employer expense

Current Service cost 566,840 464,782

Interest cost 263,350 257,103

Expected return on plan assets - -

Curtailment cost/ (credit) - -

Settlement cost/ (credit) - -

Fast Service Cost 1,592,596 -

Actuarial Losses/ (Gains) - 496

Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit &: Loss 2,422,786 722,381

Balance Sheet

Details of provision for gratuity ?

For the year ended For the year ended
Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet March 31’ 2018 March 31' 2017

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation (5,148,831) (3,587,879)

Fair value of plan assets - -

Funded status [Surplus/ (Deflcit)] (5,148,831) (3,587,879)

Unrecognised Fast Service Costs — —

Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet (5,148,831) (3,587,879)

?

_ _ . _ . _ For the year ended For the year ended
Change 1n Defined Benefit Obhgahons (DBO) durmg the year ended March 31' 2018 March 31' 2017

Present value of DBO at beginning of period 3,587,879 3,181,962

Current service cost 566,840 464,782

Interest cost 263,350 257,103

Curtailment cost/ (credit) - -

Settlement cost/ (credit) - -

Plan amendments - -

Acquisitions - -

Actuarial (gains)/ losses - 496

Past service cost 1,592,596 -

Benefits paid (484,029) (316,464)

Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligations - Due to change in Financial Assumptions (212,385) -

Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience (165,420) -

Present value of DBO at the end of period 5,148,831 3,587,879

Principal actuarial assumptions as at the balance sheet date :

_ For the year ended For the year ended

Pamwla“ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Discount rate 7.86% 7.34%

Salary escalation 5% 5%

Attrition rate 2% 2%    
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Note 42 : Segments Reporting

(:1) Information about Business Segments for the Year Ended 31 March, 2018
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Manufacturing Trading in Total

Particulars of Adhesives 81: Chemicals
Emulsions

Revenue

Sales/Income from operations 2,458,828,279 938,131,223 3,396,959,502
Inter-segment sales - - -

Total revenue 2,458,828,279 938,131,223 3,396,959,502

Result
Segment result 124,472,643 9,634,873 134,107,516

Unallocated corporate expenses(Net) 25,452,256

Operating profit 108,655,260

Interest expense(Net) 65,323,246
Income taxes(includjng deferred tax) 14,768,000

Profit from ordinary activities 28,564,014

Extraordinary items -

Net profit 28,564,014

Other informations

Segment assets 1,304,334,220 255,722,236 1,560,056,456

Unallocated corporate assets 535,500
Total assets 1,560,591,956

Segment liabilities 1,012,638,819 198,452,198 1,211,091,017

Unallocated corporate liabilities 299,430,533
Total liabilities 1,207,251,281

Add: Share capital and reserves 353,340,675

Total capital &: liabilities 1,560,591,956

Capital expenditure (including capital work in progress) 70,625,447 -
Depreciation 17,604,461 -     
Notes :

1) The information stated above is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segments".

2) The Business Segment is the Primary Segment of the Company and there is no geographical segment having differing risk and
retums.

3) For comparison with previous year, refer Note 42(b)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Note 42 : Segments Reporting

(b) Information about Business Segments for the Year Ended 31 March, 2017
?

Particulars Manufacturing Trading in Total

of Adhesives 81: Chemicals ?

Emulsions

Revenue

Sales/Income From Operations 2,061,150,159 832,745,045 2,893,895,204

Inter-Segment Sales - - -
Total Revenue 2,061,150,159 832,745,045 2,893,895,204

Result

Segment Result 131,857,729 (8,880,722) 122,977,007

Unallocated Corporate Expenses(Net) 25,271,326

Operating Profit 97,705,681

Interest Expense(Net) 67,162,418

Income Taxes(includjng deferred tax) 10,132,782

Profit From Ordinary Activities 20,410,481

Extraordinary Items -

Net Profit 20,410,481
Other Informations

Segment Assets 1,078,982,265 207,440,228 1,286,422,493

Unallocated Corporate Assets 9,933,108

Total Assets 1,296,355,601

Segment Liabilities 622,424,889 23,738,628 646,163,517

Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 453,914,114

Total Liabilities 1,116,782,073

Add: Share Capital And Reserves 179,573,528

Total Capital & Liabilities 1,296,355,601

Capital Expenditure (Including Capital work in Progress) 19,253,054 -
Depreciation 14,875,235 -      
Notes :

1) The Information stated above is in conformity with Accounting Standard 17 "Segment Reporting" issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

2) The Business Segment is the Plimary Segment of the Company and there is no geographical segment having differing risk and
returns.
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Note 43 : Related party disclosures
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Disclosure of transactions with related parties, as required by Ind AS 24 " Related Party Disclosures" is given below:

(a) Name of the related parties and nature of relationship
 

 

 

 

 

        
 

 

 

Name Nature of relationship
Umesh J. Sanghavi Promoter Directors and Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Rajendra J. Sanghavi Promoter Directors and Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Tarak J. Sanghavi Promoter Directors and Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Ashok J. Sanghavi Promoter and Relative of Directors
Anita U. Sanghavi Relative of Director
Mrunalini R. Sanghavi Relative of Director
Rekha T. Sanghavi Relative of Director
Ami U. PaIIkh Relative of Director
Vasant Polymers & Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. A Company Significantly Influenced by relatives of KMP.
Zeki Software 8: Solutions Pvt. Ltd. A Company Significantly Influenced by relatives of KMP.

(b) Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31st March 2018 ?

_ Relatives of Enter ises that are

. madam & Key Directors & Key significalztly influenced
Particulars Management . Total

Personnel Management by the Directors and/or

Personnel their Relatives

Remuneration paid 3,332,448 2,527,350 - 5,859,798

(3,332,448) (2,865,000) (-) (6,197,448)
Loans Received - - 459,970,000 459,970,000

(-) (-) (588,033,100) (588,033,100)
Loans Repaid - - 459,970,000 459,970,000

(-) (-) (465,451,000) (465,451,000)
Interest Paid - - 194,382 194,382

(-) (—) (73,240) (73,240)
Rent Paid - - 240,000 240,000

(-) (-) (240,000) (240,000)
Sales - - - -

<-> (-) (77.859) (77,859)
Purchases - - - -

(-) (-) - -
Outstanding Credit/ (Debit) Balance - - - -

Figures in brackets relates to the previous year

NOTE 44 : Unhedged foreign currency exposure

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Foreign Currency ? Foreign Currency ?

US $ US $

Payable against Import of goods 3,074,678 200,530,473 2,060,427 135,912,738     
 

NOTE 45 : There are no amounts payable to any Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as identified by the Management from the information
available with the Company and relied by Auditors.

NOTE 46 : The figures for the previous year have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary.

NOTE 47 : Figures have been rounded off to nearest ‘.
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Tel. No. +91-022 26835864/26836558 Fax No. 26840750.Website: www.nikhiladhesives.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

32ml ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON FRIDAY, 28“' SEPTEMBER, 2018 AT 11.00 A.M.

At The Andheri Recreation Club, Dadabhai Road, Opposite Bhavans College Road,

Andheri (W) Mumbai -400058

 
Folio No. : DP ID No. : Client ID No. :

     
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 32’“1 Annual General Meeting of the company held on Friday, the 28th September,
2018, at 11.00 am. at The Andheri Recreation Club, Dadabhai Road, Opposite Bhavans College Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai

-400058.

 

Name ofthe Member: Signature

 

Name ofthe Proxy holder: Signature

    
Notes: 1. Only Member/ Proxy holder can attend the Meeting

2. Please complete the Folio No. /DP ID No., Client ID No. and name of the Member/ Proxy holder, sign this

Attendance Slip and hand it over, duty signed, at the entrance of the Meeting hall.

3. A Member/ Proxy holder attending the meeting should bring copy ofAnnual Report for reference at the

Meeting.
 

NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) — L51900MH1986PLC041062

Registered Office: 315, The Summit Business Bay, Behind Gurunank Petrol Pump, Opp. Cinemax,

Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400093

Tel. No. 91/2226835864/26836558 Fax No. 26840750.Website: www.nikhiladhesives.com

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014]
 

Name of the Member(s):

Registered Address:

Email ID:

Folio No./DP-Client ID:   
I/We being the member(s) of NIKHIL ADHESIVES LTD. holding: Share, hereby appoint :

1. Name :

Address:

Signature: or failing him

 

 

2. Name :

Address:

Signature: or failing him

 

 

3. Name :

Address:

Signature:

 

 

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on poll) for me/us on my/our behalf at the 32ml Annual General Meeting of the Company

to be held on Friday, the 28th September, 2018, at 11.00 a.m., at The Andheri Recreation Club, Dadabhai Road, Opposite

Bhavans College Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai -400058. And at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are

indicated below:
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Sr. No Resolutions

 

Adoption of statement of Profit and Loss, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, Report of Board of Directors and

1 Auditors for the year ended 31st March 2018

 

Declare dividend for the financial year ended 31$t March 2018.

 

3 Re-appointment of Mr. T. I. Sanghavi (DIN 00519403) who retires by rotation.

 

4 Ratification ofAppointment ofAuditors.

 

Approval for continuation of Directorship of Mr. M. M. Vora who have attained the age of 75 years, for the remaining

period of their existing term of directorship as Independent Directors of the Company
 

Approval for continuation of Directorship of Mr. H. S. Kamath who have attained the age of 75 years, for the

remaining period of their existing term of directorship as Independent Directors of the Company
  7 Appointment of Cost Auditors and fixing their remuneration.   
 

 

 

   

. . Affix
Signed thls dayof 2018 Re.1.00

Signedof the shareholder
Revenue

Signature of ProxyHolder stamp

Note:

1. This Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited as the Registered office ofthe company at 315,

The Summit Business Bay, Behind Gurunank Petrol Pump, Opp. Cinemax, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai -

400093 ,notlessthan48 hours beforethecommencementofthemeeting.

2. Aproxy need notbe a member ofthe company.

3. For the Resolution, Explantory Statement and Notes, Please refer to the Notice ofthe 32ml ANNUAL REPORT of

filewmpany-
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\ JAMMU
& n

KASHMIR
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' , FRADESH

\

  
  

    

   

   PUNJAB

UTTARAKHAND
"

FEAJASTHAN
UTTAHF‘RADESH

GUJARAT

', JHARKHAND

MADHYA PRADESH WEST
E-E NGAL

h-‘iAHARASHTRA

 PRADESH I OUR OFFICES
Head Qflice/Registered Ofiice
Office No. 315,

The Summit Bussiness Bay,
Opp. Cinemax Theatre,

Andheri (E).
Mumbai-93
Tel—26836556159.

ho@nikhiladhesives.com

WE HAVE OUR DISTRIBUTERS FOR :

mmmmu Q CONSUMER PRODUCTS.

. INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS.

  
 

Branch ofl’ices

A-fi Shyarn Kunj,Gokul Vihar Township,
N.H. No. 6, Opp. Vrundavan Row House,
Chharwardapardi. Valsad GJ-396191.
TeI-07878741746
Shailesh.bajani@n‘)khiladhesives.oom

214. Jodhpur Garden,
Opp. South City Mall, Mezzanine Floor,
Kolkata - 700045
Tel. : 033 - 32921684,
cksinha@nikhiladhesives.com

Suraj Market ,Shop No. S,Mezzanine Floor.
Lalji Hirji Road. Ranchi-834DD1
Jharkhand.
Tel No.-093862465B4
Safdar.imam@nikhiladhesivesicom

  
 

C-341, kabir Dharn CompoundKr‘tshna Nagar,
Opposite Regent Motors,Meeru1 Road.
Ghaziabad {UP}-201009.
Tel No.—09368521254
neeraj.mishra@nikhiladhesives.com

Flat, No. 911. Subhiksha , Athreyapurarn.
151 street, Choolaimedu, Chennai-600094
Mob. 09381016946
hameed.azeez@nikhiladhesives.com

# 53, CVS Nest Mallathalli. Lake Road,
NGEF Layout, Mallaihalli.
Benguluru - 560056
Mob. 9900095864
krishna.patil@nikhiladhesives,com  

     

E-65, Transport Nagar
Lucknow

Mob. 9839191555
 Factories

  

Shreeji Estate, Vadhkun, College Road,
Dahanu, Maharashtra.

Tel. : 02528 - 224463 , 223107

7 - Government Industrial Estate,
Post — Pipria. Silvaaa.
Tel, : 0260 - 2640 045  
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Plot No. D-ZICHI49, Industrial Phase,
Dahej - 2. G.I.D.C Industrial Estate - Dahej.

Taluka - Vagra Dist - Bharuch
Tel. : 09377824268



  

   Since— 1971

 
.SPECI‘AL ADHESIVE FOR PVC APPLICATION-
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